

Shenyin Wanguo (H.K.) Limited 申銀萬國(香港)有限公司 (Stock Code 股份代號: 218)



Annual Report 年報

CONTENTS

	Pages
Corporate Information	2
Chairman's Statement	3-5
Management Discussion & Analysis	6-10
Corporate Governance Report	11-27
Report of the Directors	28-39
Independent Auditors' Report	40-41
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss	42
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income	43
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position	44-45
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity	46
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows	47-48
Statement of Financial Position	49
Notes to Financial Statements	50-110

CORPORATE INFORMATION

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Chu Xiaoming (Chairman) Lu Wenqing Guo Chun (Chief Executive Officer) Lee Man Chun Tony

Non-executive Director

Zhang Lei

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ng Wing Hang Patrick Kwok Lam Kwong Larry Zhuo Fumin

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ng Wing Hang Patrick (Chairman) Kwok Lam Kwong Larry Zhuo Fumin

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Kwok Lam Kwong Larry (Chairman) Ng Wing Hang Patrick Zhuo Fumin

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Chu Xiaoming (Chairman) Ng Wing Hang Patrick Kwok Lam Kwong Larry Zhuo Fumin

COMPANY SECRETARY

Wong Che Keung Leslie

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited Bank of Communications Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch China CITIC Bank International Limited China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation China Construction Bank Corporation, Hong Kong Branch Chong Hing Bank Limited Dah Sing Bank, Limited DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited Hang Seng Bank Limited Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited, Hong Kong Branch Public Bank (Hong Kong) Limited Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

REGISTERED OFFICE

Level 19 28 Hennessy Road Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS & TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited Level 22, Hopewell Centre 183 Queen's Road East Hong Kong

WEBSITE

http://www.sywg.com.hk

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

I hereby present to the shareholders the annual report of Shenyin Wanguo (H.K.) Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (the "Group") for the year ended 31 December 2014.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded a profit before tax of approximately HK\$101.5 million, representing an increase of 94% as compared with HK\$52.4 million in 2013. Net profit attributable to shareholders of approximately HK\$93.9 million, representing an increase of 99% as compared with HK\$47.2 million in 2013. The turnover increased by 34% to approximately HK\$473.3 million (2013: HK\$354.0 million). The basic earnings per share increased by 99% to HK17.7 cents as compared with HK8.9 cents in 2013.

DIVIDEND

The board of directors (the "Board") of the Company has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK5 cents per ordinary share in respect of 2014, to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on 22 May 2015. The proposed dividend will be paid on or about 3 June 2015 subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

REVIEW OF MARKET IN 2014

In 2014, the biggest black swan incident was the plunge in crude oil price. It triggered geopolitical crisis coupled with the covetous deflation risk, they fueled increasing uncertainty to the global economic recovery. The pulling out of the quantitative easing (QE) by the U.S. Federal Reserve Board as scheduled did not affect the demand growth of the U.S. real estate market. Meanwhile, the employment market continued to show substantial improvements. However, domestic U.S. inflation held its emergence due to sluggish bulk commodity price. Furthermore, the U.S. Federal Reserve Board also started to show concern about the possible negative impact on domestic economy due to overseas deflation risk. Therefore, investors had lowered the expectation of raising interest rate by the U.S. Federal Reserve Board in mid-2015. Meanwhile, as low crude oil price had escalated domestic deflation risk, both Japan and Europe began to exert quantitative easing (QE) measures. The new Japanese Government also planned to implement economic structural reform to eradicate the negative growth curse in Japan over the past decade, with the markets still observing. The situation in Europe was also not promising. Despite core countries like Germany and France had recorded strong economic growth, the debt issuance costs in the peripheral countries began to rise and the debt crisis phantom emerged in Europe once again. Apart from purchasing national debts of the European countries to reduce borrowing costs, European Central Bank must also cope with the debt default risks that might be caused by leadership changes in various national governments. The performance of emerging markets was fragmented, of which, the reforms in India revealed optimistic prospect with its stock market growth outclassed the world. Russia was deeply trapped by geopolitical turbulence and the sharp fall in crude oil price had added fuel to the burning Russian economy with its currency substantially depreciated and debt credit rating dropped successively. As net exporters of resources, Brazil and South Africa were negatively affected due to sluggish bulk commodity prices, and their economic prospects lacked lustre.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Cont'd)

REVIEW OF MARKET IN 2014 (Cont'd)

After experiencing a downturn in first three quarters, with the first-ever reduction in Central Bank interest rate, the Chinese Mainland domestic economy showed signs of stability by the end of the year. Real estate sales and medium and long term bank loans had recorded strong growth, indicating that the end demand was improving. At the same time, the reforms of the Chinese Mainland underwent remarkable progresses, with financial reform, state-owned enterprise reform, land reform, resource factors price reform all progressing steadily. Of which, financial reform is of most praiseworthy. The loosening regulations in insurance and securities industries, the official launch of Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, RMB internationalisation and interest rate marketisation were moving forward orderly and had injected vitality to the Chinese Mainland stock market. Under this impact, Hang Seng Index, from its trough of 21,137 on 20 March 2014, after four months of shocking adjustments, started to rebound hastily for four months, reaching 25,362 on 4 September, representing an increase of roughly 20%. Thereafter, with the escalating geopolitical risks in Russia, investors took profits and Hang Seng Index trembled down to 23,605 by the end of December. In 2014, with Hong Kong Stock Exchange average daily turnover amounted to HK\$69.5 billion, it represented an increase of 11% as compared with the average daily turnover of HK\$62.6 billion in 2013.

PROSPECTS & FUTURE PLAN

The market generally expects that the U.S. economy will continue to recover and that the U.S. Federal Reserve Board will start to raise interest rate in the second half of 2015 or in early 2016. Meanwhile, the quantitative easing policies of Japan and Europe will still continue but the economic growth and inflationary trend of these two economies remain to be observed. We think that the Chinese Mainland's economic transformation will enter into a "new normal state", and correspondingly, its monetary policy and fiscal policy will continue to be stable. It is expected that there will be many occasions of interest rate reduction and Reserve Requirement Ratio cuts, and the governments will increase investments in railway and infrastructure construction during the year. The 2015 GDP is expected to reach the growth target of over 7%. At the same time, financial market reform, state-owned enterprise reform, resource factors price reform and environmental governance will continue to contribute reform benefits in pushing the continuing economic transformation. Under the current valuation standard, the Chinese Mainland assets remain very attractive. Along with the scale expanding Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and the implementation of Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, it is expected that large blue chips and emerging small and middle caps stocks will show better investment opportunities in 2015.

The reorganisation and merger of the parent company was completed and Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd., the subject entity, was listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 26 January 2015. In 2015, the Group plans to firmly grasp the market opportunities from the launching of RMB internationalisation and cross-border policy to continue improving and enhancing the business capacity of the four cross-border business platforms in retailing, institutions, corporate finance and assets management products. We will perfect and strengthen the Asia Pacific region layouts, using our Singapore subsidiary to focus on wealth management and assets management businesses and at the same time, prudently expand the European and U.S. markets.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Cont'd)

PROSPECTS & FUTURE PLAN (Cont'd)

On 28 November 2014, the Company announced a proposed rights issue on the basis of one rights share for every two existing shares held at a price of HK\$2.342 per rights share. The rights issue was oversubscribed and the Company allotted and issued a total 265,379,563 rights shares, with actual net proceeds of approximately HK\$620.3 million. The net proceeds would be used (a) to further develop the financing and loans business; and (b) as general working capital. The rights issue will not only let all Shareholders the opportunities to participate in the future development of the Group, but will also strengthen the Group's capital base and enhance its financial position. Accordingly, the rights issue is in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to Mr. Chang Pen Tsao, who had resigned as a Director on 12 December 2014, for his valuable contributions to the Company.

Chu Xiaoming

Chairman

Hong Kong 6 March 2015

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

In 2014, the overall results of the Group achieved a remarkable growth with a turnover of HK\$473.3 million (2013: HK\$354.0 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 34%. Profit before tax exceeded HK\$100.0 million, representing an increase of 94% to HK\$101.5 million in 2014 from HK\$52.4 million in 2013. Profit attributable to shareholders increased by 99% to HK\$93.9 million from HK\$47.2 million in 2013. Revenue from corporate finance business achieved a higher growth, which was mainly due to a substantial increase in the amounts and number of placement projects. Revenue from brokerage business, financing and loans business and asset management business also achieved excellent performance with a satisfactory year-on-year growth.

For brokerage business, with the double-digit increase in stock market's average daily turnover and an increase of the Group's market share, revenue increased by 26% to HK\$262.9 million in 2014 from HK\$208.1 million in 2013. For corporate finance business, apart from the considerable revenue generated from placement projects, we successfully completed the sponsoring/lead placing agent of 3 IPO projects, including the listings of Hung Fook Tong Group Holdings Limited (1446) and EGL Holdings Company Limited (6882) on the Main Board and the listing of Medicskin Holdings Limited (8307) on the GEM Board. In 2014, revenue from corporate finance business achieved HK\$59.3 million, representing an increase of 159% as compared with that in 2013. The numbers of sponsoring/lead placing agent, underwriting participation/placement and financial advisory projects are 3, 10 and 23 respectively. Revenue from asset management business in 2014 achieved HK\$11.5 million, representing an increase of 24% as compared with HK\$9.3 million in 2013. For financing and loans business, we achieved revenue of HK\$124.0 million, representing an increase of 30% as compared with HK\$95.7 million in 2013 with average margin loan balance in 2014 reached nearly HK\$1.5 billion.

Brokerage business

The brokerage business of the Group focused on the stock and futures markets in Hong Kong, and the Group expanded actively its commission income from markets outside Hong Kong to drive the overall transformation of its revenue composition. In the second half of 2014, the Group successfully became one of the first batch participants in the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect of HKEx, and provided comprehensive trading services for Shanghai securities on the first trading day of the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect. With active trading of Hong Kong securities, especially a substantial surge in trading amount in the second half of 2014, the average daily turnover of Hong Kong stock market, increased by 11% to HK\$69.5 billion in 2014 from HK\$62.6 billion in 2013. The Group seized the opportunities brought by the robust market sentiment to actively direct customers to participate in Hong Kong securities trading, vigorously promoted its securities business and achieved good result with our trading volume up by 33%. Commission income from Hong Kong securities increased by 29% to HK\$196.6 million from HK\$152.6 million in 2013. Income from brokerage business other than commission income from Hong Kong securities also achieved good performance, increased by 20% to HK\$66.3 million in 2014 from HK\$55.5 million in 2013.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (Cont'd)

Brokerage business (Cont'd)

For the institutional brokerage business, the Group even integrated its overseas offices and sales teams further to unify its management and joint marketing, and actively expanded the comprehensive institutional business, which included share placement and RQFII products marketing. At the same time, for business development, the Group's wholly-owned Singapore-incorporated subsidiary officially commenced its operation, and the Group introduced the equity capital markets team to actively develop large transactions from institutional clients and placement business and generated good performance. The percentage of trading volume in Hong Kong securities of our institutional sales team to the Group was 25% in 2014.

Financing and loans business

In 2014, the Group expanded and obtained more loans facilities through negotiations with a number of banks and signed bilateral agreements to support the development of various businesses. The Group also grasped the market opportunities brought by the intensive issue of new shares in the Hong Kong market and the active trading of the stock market, and under the premise of controllable risks, we promptly expanded the credit scale to complement the development of retail brokerage business of Hong Kong securities. For financing and loans business, we achieved a revenue of HK\$124.0 million with the average margin loan balance reached HK\$1.491 billion in 2014, representing an increase of 30% and 19% respectively as compared with last year.

Corporate finance business

Shenvin Wanguo Capital (H.K.) Limited ("Shenvin Wanguo Capital"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, is mainly engaged in the sponsor, financial advisory and securities underwriting businesses. In 2014, apart from the aforementioned 3 IPO sponsoring/lead placing agent projects, the Group successfully participated in 10 underwriting/placement projects, including Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited (3636), Harbin Bank Co., Ltd. (6138), New Concepts Holdings Limited (2221), CW Group Holdings Ltd. (1322), China NT Pharma Group Company Limited (1011) and China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited (85). Shenvin Wanguo Capital also provided over 20 projects of financial advisory services for various listed companies, including the independent financial advisor clients like Fosun International Limited (656), Guangzhou Shipyard International Company Limited (317), Hao Wen Holdings Limited (8019), Tonly Electronics Holdings Limited (1249), Highlight China IoT International Limited (formerly known as Ford Glory Group Holdings Limited) (1682) and China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited (670), etc.; the compliance advisors like DYNAM JAPAN HOLDINGS Co., Ltd.(6889), Goldpac Group Limited (3315), Joy City Property Limited (formerly known as COFCO Land Holdings Limited) (207), Fu Shou Yuan International Group Limited (1448), Opes Asia Development Limited (810), Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited (3636) and Beijing Digital Telecom Co., Ltd. (6188), etc.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (Cont'd)

Securities research business

Our securities trading and brokerage businesses are professionally supported by a securities research team of the Group. With the support of our parent company, which is one of the leading securities companies in the Chinese Mainland, the Group has become a specialist in the research of the Chinese Mainland securities and prepares detailed company analytical reports for circulation to our clients. In 2014, the securities research team of the Group had issued a total of over 2,000 research reports, covering macroeconomics, market strategy and different industries, providing thorough and incisive analysis of Hong Kong stock and A Shares in China for clients. After developing Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the research service needs offered by the Group for clients are further improved.

In 2014, a total of 33 analysts either in person or invited Hong Kong listed companies to meet with our clients from Hong Kong and Asia and had completed the holding of 104 international roadshows for the whole year. We believe that such excursions were beneficial to the collaboration between our parent company and us and posed positive impact on the research and investment banking fronts.

Asset management business

In 2014, the demand for cross-border investment products in both Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong were still very strong, Shenyin Wanguo Asset Management (Asia) Limited ("SWAM"), a subsidiary of the Group, is engaged in asset management business. SWAM fully elaborated on RQFII innovative policy to vigorously conduct cross-border asset management business, and successfully launched a new public fund "Shenyin Wanguo RQFII PRC Government Bond Fund" in 2014, with a size of HK\$1.2 billion. With the total amount of RQFII quota continues to increase constantly, the assets under management reached HK\$5.506 billion by the end of 2014, which represented an increase of 84% over the corresponding period of 2013. We achieved business revenue of HK\$11.5 million, which represented an increase of 24% as compared with that in 2013, thereby maintaining a dual growth momentum in both assets under management and revenue.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, there was no change to the share capital of the Company. As at 31 December 2014, the total number of the issued ordinary shares was 530,759,126 shares (2013: 530,759,126) and total equity attributable to shareholders was approximately HK\$1,313.9 million (2013: HK\$1,243.5 million).

On 19 January 2015, the Company completed the rights issue by issuing 265,379,563 new shares. Please refer to the Company's related announcements and listing documents for details.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a cash holding of HK\$272.4 million (2013: HK\$277.7 million) and short-term marketable securities of HK\$199.9 million (2013: HK\$138.3 million). As at 31 December 2014, the Group's total unutilised banking facilities amounted to HK\$836.9 million (2013: HK\$844.0 million), of which HK\$245.8 million (2013: HK\$436.0 million) could be drawn down without the need of notice period nor completion of condition precedent.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had outstanding short-term bank borrowings amounting to HK\$1,009.1 million (2013: HK\$809.4 million). The liquidity ratio (current assets to current liabilities) and gearing ratio (borrowings to net asset value) as at 31 December 2014 were 126% (2013: 131%) and 77% (2013: 65%) respectively.

The Group has sufficient financial resources for its day to day operations as well as spare capacity to take advantage of any investment opportunities when they arise.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the year, the Group did not hold any significant investment and did not have any material acquisition or disposal.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP'S ASSET

No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31 December 2014.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has properly put in place credit management policies which cover the examination of the approval of clients' trading and credit limits, regular reviews of facilities granted, monitoring of credit exposures and the follow up of credit risks associated with overdue debts. The policies are reviewed and updated regularly.

The management closely monitors the market condition so that precautionary measures will be taken to eliminate any risk that the Group may encounter. As at 31 December 2014, all advances to customers were margin financing and the balance before impairment provision amounted to HK\$1,717.6 million (2013: HK\$1,531.6 million), of which 14% (2013: 20%) was attributable to corporate customers with the rest attributable to individual customers.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES AND ANY RELATED HEDGES

The Group's exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates arises from its dealings in overseas share markets. Such dealings are entered into on behalf of clients of the Group and accounted for a small portion of the Group's revenue. A material portion of such overseas transactions is denominated in United States dollars. The pegged exchange rate between United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars kept the Group's exchange risk exposure to a minimum and thus, no hedging was required. Exchange gains and/or losses are dealt with in the statement of profit or loss. The Group has endeavored to closely monitor its foreign currency positions and take necessary measures when the situations so justify.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There were no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2014.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Except the future plans as disclosed in the paragraph of "Prospects & Future Plan" in the Chairman's Statement, the Group had no other future plans for material investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2014.

EMPLOYEES AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2014, the total number of full-time employees was 248 (2013: 219). The total staff costs for the year amounted to approximately HK\$150.2 million (2013: HK\$114.3 million).

The Group is committed to professional training for its employees. In compliance with the relevant requirement of the Securities and Futures Commission, the Group had organised a total of 13 (2013: 11) Continuous Professional Training seminars for all licensed staff members for the year ended 31 December 2014.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In 2014, the Group continued to fulfill its corporate social responsibility and care about social needs. The Group conducted various charitable and caring activities again under the collaboration with Chinese Young Men's Christian Association (YMCA) of Hong Kong. The activities include the setting up of volunteer teams to assist the Elderly College of Chinese YMCA in holding a graduation ceremony, organising a day trip to Nan Lian Garden for the senior citizens, visiting the Sheltered Workshop for mentally handicapped persons, visiting ethnic minority's groups in New Territories and participating their sports activities to promote social inclusion.

These activities not only help people in need, but also spread our caring and love for the whole society.

This year, the Group once again had been awarded the honour of "Caring Company" by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition of our fulfillment of the spirit as a good corporation and caring about the community.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

To better the Company's transparency and accountability to the shareholders, the Company is, so far as practicable, committed to maintaining high standard of corporate governance. Save for the deviation from the Code Provision A.6.7 which is explained as below, the Company has met all the code provisions stipulated in Appendix 14, Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the "Code"), of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Listing Rules") for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Code Provision A.6.7 specifies that independent non-executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Due to other engagements, a non-executive director was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 15 April 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND SHENYIN WANGUO'S PRACTICES:

A.1 The Board of Directors

Principle: An issuer should be headed by an effective board which should assume responsibility for its leadership and control and be collectively responsible for promoting its success by directing and supervising its affairs. Directors should take decisions objectively in the interests of the issuer.

The board should regularly review the contribution required from a director to perform his responsibilities to the issuer, and whether he is spending sufficient time performing them.

Five board meetings and one general meeting, being the annual general meeting held on 15 April 2014, were held by the Company in the financial year ended 31 December 2014. Attendance record of each individual director is as follows:

Name of Directors	Number of board meeting(s) attended/held	Number of general meeting(s) attended/held
Executive Directors		
Chu Xiaoming (Chairman)	5/5	1/1
Lu Wenqing	5/5	1/1
Guo Chun (Chief Executive Officer)	5/5	1/1
Lee Man Chun Tony	5/5	1/1
Non-executive Directors		
Chang Pen Tsao (resigned on 12 December 2014)	0/5	0/1
Zhang Lei	5/5	1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors		
Ng Wing Hang Patrick	5/5	1/1
Kwok Lam Kwong Larry	5/5	1/1
Zhuo Fumin	5/5	1/1

Drafts of the agenda were sent to directors for comments before the meetings were held. They could include matters in the agenda for board meetings.

Notice of at least 14 days were given of a regular board meeting to give all directors an opportunity to attend. For all other board meetings, reasonable notice was given.

Minutes of the board meetings, and meetings of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee are kept by the Company Secretary. Minutes of other board committees (as listed under D.2 Board Committees) are kept by the appointed secretary of each committee. Such minutes are open for inspection during office hour by any director by giving at least 2 days' notice to the Company Secretary.

Minutes of the board meetings and meetings of board committees have recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions of minutes were sent to all directors for their comment and records respectively, normally within one month after the board meeting was held.

The Company established a policy for any director to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's expenses. The director is required to submit a request in writing to the Chairman stating the grounds for seeking the independent professional advice. The Chairman shall either approve the director's request directly, or if thinks fit, convene a board meeting to resolve the matter.

If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter shall be dealt with by a physical board meeting rather than a written resolution. Independent non-executive directors who, and whose close associates, have no material interest in the transaction should be present at that board meeting.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal actions against its directors. The coverage and the amount insured under such policy are reviewed annually by the Company.

A.2 Chairman and Chief Executive

Principle: There are two key aspects of the management of every issuer – the management of the board and the day-to-day management of business. There should be a clear division of these responsibilities to ensure a balance of power and authority, so that power is not concentrated in any one individual.

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of Chairman is separate from that of Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Chu Xiaoming acts as the Chairman, and Mr. Guo Chun acts as the Chief Executive Officer.

The respective responsibilities of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are clearly established. The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership for and the management of the Board whilst the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group's business including the implementation of significant strategies formulated by the Board.

The Chairman ensured that all directors were properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate information which must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable.

The Chairman ensured that the Board works effectively and performs its responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by it in a timely manner. With the support of the Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary, all directors have been consulted about any matters proposed for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman finally reviews and approves the agenda before the agenda for each board meeting is issued.

The Chairman ensured that the Board and the management of the Company are committed to the maintenance of good corporate governance practices and procedures.

Directors are encouraged to express their viewpoints to the Board's affairs and voice their concerns, if any, and are provided sufficient time for discussion of issues in the meetings and the Chairman directs discussions towards the emergence of a consensus view and then sum up discussions so that all directors understand what has been agreed.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the Chairman held a meeting with the non-executive and independent non-executive directors without the presence of the executive directors.

The Chairman ensured that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective communication with shareholders and that their views were communicated to the Board as a whole. The Board has established a shareholders communication policy which is available on the Company's website.

A.3 Board Composition

Principle: The board should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate for the requirements of the issuer's business. It should ensure that changes to its composition can be managed without undue disruption. It should include a balanced composition of executive and non-executive directors (including independent non-executive directors) so that there is a strong independent element on the board, which can effectively exercise independent judgement. Non-executive directors should be of sufficient calibre and number for their views to carry weight.

During the financial year, the composition of the Board of the Company with their respective names and titles are set out below:

Executive Directors

Chu Xiaoming (Chairman)
Lu Wenqing
Guo Chun (Chief Executive Officer)
Lee Man Chun Tony

Non-executive Directors

Chang Pen Tsao (resigned on 12 December 2014) Zhang Lei

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ng Wing Hang Patrick Kwok Lam Kwong Larry Zhuo Fumin

All directors were expressly identified by categories of executive directors, non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors in all corporate communications that disclose the names of directors of the Company.

An updated list of the directors of the Company identifying their role and function and whether they are independent non-executive directors is maintained on the websites of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited ("HKEx") and the Company.

A.4 Appointments, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Principle: There should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of new directors. There should be plans in place for orderly succession for appointments. All directors should be subject to re-election at regular intervals. An issuer must explain the reasons for the resignation or removal of any director.

All directors (including non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors) are appointed for a specific term, subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

According to the Articles of Association of the Company, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Further, any director newly appointed shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election.

The Board can appoint new director(s) either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board between general meetings. Nomination Committee will make recommendation to the Board on such matter (see A.5 below). The director so appointed, however, shall retire and eligible to be re-elected in the coming general meeting. In addition, shareholder can also propose a candidate for election as director at a general meeting in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. The nomination procedures by shareholders are published on the website of the Company. All successful candidates must possess the necessary skills, knowledge and experience which can help the Board to direct the Company's business. In addition, all candidates must be able to meet the criteria stipulated in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an independent non-executive director should also meet the independence criteria set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules. To further enhance accountability, any further appointment of an independent non-executive director who has served the Board for more than 9 years will be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.

A.5 Nomination Committee

Principle: In carrying out its responsibilities, the nomination committee should give adequate consideration to the Principles under A.3 and A.4.

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established in March 2012. The functions of the Nomination Committee are mainly to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspective) of the Board, to identify individuals suitably qualified to become board members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, to assess the independence of independent non-executive directors, to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors as well as to monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate. Details of terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are published on the websites of HKEx and the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises the Chairman of the Company, Mr. Chu Xiaoming, and three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Ng Wing Hang Patrick, Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong Larry and Mr. Zhuo Fumin. Mr. Chu Xiaoming acts as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting in the financial year ended 31 December 2014. The following is an attendance record of the meeting held by the Nomination Committee for the financial year:

	meeting(s)		
Name of Committee Members	attended/held		
Chu Xiaoming (Chairman)	1/1		
Ng Wing Hang Patrick	1/1		
Kwok Lam Kwong Larry	1/1		
Zhuo Fumin	1/1		

During the financial year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, assessed the independence of each independent non-executive director, and made recommendation of re-election of retiring directors at the annual general meeting to the Board.

The Nomination Committee was provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties and it can seek independent professional advice at the Company's expense if necessary.

The Company adopted the Board Diversity Policy which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. When determining the composition of the Board, it will take into consideration a number of factors, including but not limited to, skills, knowledge, professional experience, gender, age, cultural and educational background, and other qualities of Directors. All Board appointments will be made on a merit basis and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

A.6 Responsibilities of Directors

Principle: Every director must always know his responsibilities as a director of an issuer and its conduct, business activities and development. Given the essential unitary nature of the board, non-executive directors have the same duties of care and skill and fiduciary duties as executive directors.

Every newly appointed director of the Company shall receive guidance materials from the Company Secretary upon his appointment so as to enable the director having a proper understanding of the Company's operations and business and to ensure him to be fully aware of his responsibilities under statue and common law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal and other regulatory requirements and the Company's business and governance policies. A director can also request the Company Secretary to arrange him to attend any relevant course and seminar.

The functions of non-executive directors have included the functions as specified in Code Provision A.6.2(a) to (d).

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers ("Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the directors or relevant employees as defined in the Model Code. The Company made specific enquiry of all directors. According to their replies, all the directors complied with the requirements set out in the Model Code during the financial year ended 31 December 2014. The Company also complied with the other requirements stipulated in the Model Code.

Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code Provision A.6.5 on directors' training. During the year, all directors have participated in continuous professional development by the following means to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to the Company.

Name of Directors	Training Received (Note)	
Executive Directors		
Chu Xiaoming (Chairman)	А, В, С	
Lu Wenqing	A	
Guo Chun (Chief Executive Officer)	А, В, С	
Lee Man Chun Tony	A, B, E	
Non-Executive Directors		
Chang Pen Tsao (resigned on 12 December 2014)	_	
Zhang Lei	A	
Independent Non-Executive Directors		
Ng Wing Hang Patrick	A	
Kwok Lam Kwong Larry	A	
Zhuo Fumin	A, C, D	

Note:

- A Attending classes and/or seminars and/or forums
- B Attending in-house briefings
- C Giving talks at classes and/or seminars and/or forums
- D Attending training relevant to the Company's business conducted by lawyers
- E Reading materials relevant to the Company's business or to the directors' duties and responsibilities

Each director is aware that he should give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Company. Upon reviewing (i) the annual confirmation of time commitment given by each director as well as the directorship and major commitments of each director held in public companies or organisations; and (ii) the attendance rate of each director on board meetings and committee meetings, it is satisfied that all directors have spent sufficient time in performing their responsibilities during the year.

A.7 Supply of and Access to Information

Principle: Directors should be provided in a timely manner with appropriate information in the form and quality to enable them to make an informed decision and perform their duties and responsibilities.

For regular board meetings, and as far as practicable in all other cases, an agenda and accompanying board papers were sent in full to all directors in a timely manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of a board meeting and board committee meeting.

As mentioned in D.1 below, there are matters reserved to be approved by the Board. Management is aware of the obligation to supply the Board and its committees with adequate information, in a timely manner, to enable it to make informed decisions. The information supplied must be complete and reliable. The Board and individual directors have separate and independent access to the Company's senior management.

All directors are entitled to have access to board papers, minutes and related materials.

B.1 The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and Disclosure

Principle: An issuer should disclose its directors' remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters. The procedure for setting policy on executive directors' remuneration and all directors' remuneration packages should be formal and transparent. Remuneration levels should be sufficient to attract and retain directors to run the issuer successfully without paying more than necessary. No director should be involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established in April 2005. The functions of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to review and make recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and structure for all remunerations of directors and senior management. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee include the specific duties set out in Code Provision B.1.2(a) to (h), with appropriate modifications where necessary. The Remuneration Committee is delegated with responsibility to determine the remuneration packages of individual executive directors and senior management. Details of terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are published on the HKEx's and Company's websites.

The Remuneration Committee presently consists of three independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong Larry, Mr. Ng Wing Hang Patrick and Mr. Zhuo Fumin. Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong Larry acts as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings in the financial year ended 31 December 2014. The following is an attendance record of the meeting held by the Remuneration Committee for the financial year:

Name of Committee Members	meeting(s) attended/held
Kwok Lam Kwong Larry (Chairman)	3/3
Ng Wing Hang Patrick	3/3
Zhuo Fumin	3/3

During the financial year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and considered the remuneration policy, packages and fringe benefits of the directors and senior management of the Group. In addition, the Remuneration Committee also reviewed the remuneration policies of the Group and compared with companies of similar scale as benchmark. Furthermore, the Committee made recommendations to the Board for the reward system of the Group, the salary increment of employees in 2014 and the reward of the Chief Executive Officer for 2014. None of the directors of the Company participated in the determination of the remuneration of their own. The Remuneration Committee was satisfied with the current remuneration policy and packages of the Group.

The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer about their remuneration proposals for the directors. The Remuneration Committee shall have access to independent professional advice if necessary.

The Remuneration Committee was provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration of the members of the senior management by band is set out below:

Remuneration bands	Number of senior management		
Nil – HK\$3,000,000	2		
. , ,	3		
HK\$3,000,001 – HK\$4,000,000 HK\$4,000,001 – HK\$5,000,000	1		

Details of the directors' remuneration and five highest paid employees for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are provided in notes to the financial statements.

Nissan a f

C.1 Financial Reporting

Principle: The board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the issuer's performance, position and prospects.

Management provided sufficient explanation and information to the Board to enable it to make an informed assessment of financial and other information put before it for approval.

Management provided all members of the Board with monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company's performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole and each director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.

Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for preparing accounts of the Company.

A statement by the external auditors about their reporting responsibilities is included in the Independent Auditors' Report.

For the basis on which the Company generates or preserves value over the longer term and the strategy for delivery its objectives, please refer to Chairman's Statement and Management Discussion & Analysis respectively.

The Board presented a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Company in annual and interim reports and other financial disclosures required by the Listing Rules, reports to regulators and information disclosed under statutory requirements.

C.2 Internal Controls

Principle: The board should ensure that the issuer maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard shareholders' investment and the issuer's assets.

The Internal Audit Department is charged with the responsibilities to evaluate whether there are sound and effective internal controls in place to safeguard the shareholders' investment and the Company's assets. Such evaluation covers all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management functions. Internal Audit Department reported twice during 2014 on significant findings on internal controls to the Audit Committee, which in turn reported to the Board accordingly. The Board found that as at the publication of this report and financial statements, the internal controls were sound and effective which safeguard the shareholders' and customers' interests and the assets of the Group.

The Board also reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's accounting and financial reporting function.

C.3 Audit Committee

Principle: The board should establish formal and transparent arrangements to consider how it will apply financial reporting and internal control principles and maintain an appropriate relationship with the issuer's external auditors. The audit committee established under the Listing Rules should have clear terms of reference.

The Audit Committee was set up in 1999. The roles of the Audit Committee are mainly to ensure integrity of financial statements, to oversee financial reporting system and internal control procedures as well as to provide advice and recommendations to the Board. The details of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee are published on the websites of the HKEx and the Company.

The Audit Committee is currently composed of three independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Ng Wing Hang Patrick, Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong Larry and Mr. Zhuo Fumin. Mr. Ng Wing Hang Patrick acts as the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held two meetings in the financial year ended 31 December 2014. The following is an attendance record of the meeting held by the Audit Committee for the financial year:

Name of Committee Members	Number of meeting(s) attended/held
Ng Wing Hang Patrick (Chairman)	2/2
Kwok Lam Kwong Larry	2/2
Zhuo Fumin	2/2

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee during the financial year is listed below:

- (1) reviewing the financial statements and the independent auditors' report before their submission to the Board;
- (2) reviewing the results of the audit on the Company's system of internal controls;
- (3) reviewing the results of the audit on the connected or continuing connected parties transactions;
- (4) nominating external auditors for re-appointments and proposing the remuneration and terms of engagement of external auditors; and
- (5) performing corporate governance functions delegated by the Board.

The work and findings of the Audit Committee were reported to the Board. During the year, no issues brought to the attention of management and the Board were of sufficient importance to require disclosure in the Annual Report.

The Board agreed with the Audit Committee's proposal for the re-appointment of Messrs. Ernst & Young as the Company's external auditors for 2015. The recommendation will be put forward for the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Full minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary. Draft and final versions of minutes of the meetings were sent to all committee members for their comment and records, normally within one month after the meeting.

No member of the Company's Audit Committee was a former partner of the Company's existing external auditors.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration paid to the external auditors, Messrs. Ernst & Young, was as below:

Nature of services	HK\$*000
Audit services	1,980
Non-audit services (included tax advisory services and	
rights issue related services)	342

The Audit Committee was provided with sufficient resources, including the advice of external auditors and Internal Audit Department, to perform its duties.

The Audit Committee established an employee whistleblowing procedures on financial reporting improprieties of the Group. Under the employee whistleblowing procedures, the employees can report any concerns relating to the possible financial reporting improprieties to the chairman of Audit Committee.

D.1 Management Functions

Principle: An issuer should have a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for board approval. The board should give clear directions to management on the matters that must be approved by it before decisions are made on the issuer's behalf.

The Board is responsible for formulating overall strategy, monitoring and controlling the performance of the Company whilst managing the Company's day-to-day business is the responsibility of the management.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management and administration functions to the management, it has given clear directions as to the management's powers, in particular, where management shall report back and obtain prior Board approval before making decisions or entering into any commitments on the Company's behalf.

Directors are clearly understood delegation arrangements in place. The Company has issued formal letter of appointment to each director (including non-executive director and independent non-executive director) setting out the key terms and conditions of the appointment.

Matters reserved to be approved by the Board include:

- (1) Appointment of directors;
- (2) Significant strategies and business plans of the Company;
- (3) Proposal for selection of external auditors;
- (4) Financial statements and budgets;
- (5) Substantial investments other than those arising in the ordinary course of Company's businesses; and
- (6) Formation of board committees.

D.2 Board Committees

Principle: Board committees should be formed with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties.

Where board committees are established to deal with matters, the Board shall give them sufficiently clear terms of reference to enable them to perform their functions properly.

Apart from the Audit Committee (particulars are disclosed under C.3), Remuneration Committee (particulars are disclosed under B.1) and Nomination Committee (particulars are disclosed under A.5), the Board also established an Executive Committee and a Management Committee with specific terms of reference. The Executive Committee consists of all the executive directors and is responsible for formulating and reviewing the Company's important strategies on business and operations. The Management Committee consists of the Chief Executive Officer, deputy general manager(s), executive directors and chief operating officer. The Management Committee usually meets weekly for making policy(ies) relating to the Company's day-to-day management and business.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee require such committees to report back to the Board on their decisions and recommendations. Material matters will be reported to the Board by the other board committees according to their respective terms of reference.

D.3 Corporate Governance Functions

The Board has delegated the responsibility for performing corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee, with the functions as specified in Code Provision D.3.1(a) to (e).

E.1 Effective Communication

Principle: The board should be responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual general meetings or other general meetings to communicate with them and encourage their participation.

At the annual general meeting held in 2014, a separate resolution was proposed by the Chairman for each substantially separate issue.

The chairman of the Board and the chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee respectively attended the annual general meeting held in 2014 to answer questions of shareholders.

The external auditor, Messrs. Ernst & Young, attended the annual general meeting held in 2014 to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors' report, the accounting policies and auditing independence.

The Company arranges for the notice to shareholders to be sent for annual general meetings at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear business days for all other general meetings.

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy and was published on the Company's website. The policy is subject to review on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules and the Code, the Company is required to disclose the following information on shareholders' rights:

Set out below are procedures by which shareholders of the Company may (a) convene an extraordinary general meeting; (b) put enquiries to the Board; (c) put forward proposals at shareholders' meetings; and (d) propose a person for election as a director. These procedures are generally governed by the Articles of Association and applicable laws, rules and regulations, which prevail over what is stated below in case of inconsistencies.

(a) How shareholders can convene an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 67 of the Articles of Association of the Company, extraordinary general meeting(s) shall be convened as provided by the Companies Ordinance.

Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings may request in writing to call an extraordinary general meeting.

The written request:

- (i) must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting and may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting (in case if the resolution is to be proposed as a special resolution, the written request should include the text of the resolution and specify the intention to propose the resolution as a special resolution);
- (ii) must be signed by the requisitionist(s); and
- (iii) may either be deposited at the registered office of the Company at Level 19, 28 Hennessy Road, Hong Kong in hard copy form or sent in electronic form by email at co.sec@sywg.com.hk.

The Board must call an extraordinary general meeting within 21 days after the date on which they become subject to the requirement and the extraordinary general meeting so called must be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening the extraordinary general meeting.

If the Board does not proceed to convene the extraordinary general meeting as aforesaid, the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves call an extraordinary general meeting, provided that any extraordinary general meeting so convened is held within 3 months after the date on which the Board becomes subject to the requirement to call an extraordinary general meeting. Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) by reason of the failure of the Board duly to call an extraordinary general meeting must be reimbursed by the Company.

(b) The procedures by which enquiries may be put to the board and sufficient contact details to enable these enquiries to be properly directed

Shareholders and other stakeholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to Company Secretary, whose contacts are listed below:

Registered office: Level 19, 28 Hennessy Road, Hong Kong

Email: co.sec@sywg.com.hk

(c) The procedures and sufficient contact details for putting forward proposals at shareholders' meetings

Any shareholder(s) satisfying the following conditions can request in writing to move a resolution at an annual general meeting:

- (i) shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at the annual general meetings to which the requests relate; or
- (ii) at least 50 shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at the annual general meeting to which the requests relate.

The written request:

- (i) must identify the resolution of which the notice is to be given;
- (ii) must be signed by the requisitionist(s); and
- (iii) may either be deposited at the registered office of the Company at Level 19, 28 Hennessy Road, Hong Kong in hard copy form or sent in electronic form by email at co.sec@sywg.com.hk, not later than 6 weeks before the annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or if later, the time at which notice is given of that annual general meeting.
- (d) The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a director

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles of Association of the Company, if a shareholder wish to propose a person other than a retiring director for election as a director at a general meeting, notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for election as a director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have been given to the Company during a period of not less than seven days commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for such election and ending no later than seven days prior to the date appointed for the meeting.

During the year, there were no significant changes in the Company's constitutional documents. Nevertheless, under the new Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the "new CO") effective on 3 March 2014, the memorandum of association of the Company has been abolished. The conditions of the memorandum of association immediately before the new CO is deemed to be regarded as provisions of the Articles of Association, except that any such condition setting out the authorised share capital and the par value of shares are regarded as deleted. All shares of the Company issued before the effective of the new CO are deemed to have no par value.

The Articles of Association of the Company is available on the HKEx's and Company's websites.

E.2 Voting by Poll

Principle: The issuer should ensure that shareholders are familiar with the detailed procedures for conducting a poll.

Since the amendment of the Listing Rules with effect from 1 January 2009, all resolutions set out in the notice of general meetings of the Company have been conducted by poll.

To ensure that shareholders are familiar with the poll procedures at the annual general meeting held in 2014, the Chairman explained the detailed procedures of poll voting.

The poll results of general meetings were published on the website of HKEx at http://www.hkexnews.hk and the Company's website at http://www.sywg.com.hk.

F. Company Secretary

Principle: The company secretary plays an important role in supporting the board by ensuring good information flow within the board and that board policy and procedures are followed. The company secretary is responsible for advising the board through the chairman and/or the chief executive on governance matters and should also facilitate induction and professional development of directors.

Mr. Wong Che Keung Leslie is the Chief Operating Officer and Company Secretary of the Group and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs. He reports to the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is subject to the Board approval in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

Mr. Wong confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the year ended 31 December 2014 in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The biographical details of Mr. Wong are set out on page 35 under the section headed Biographical Details of the Directors of the Company and the Senior Management of the Group.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the audited financial statements.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK5 cents per ordinary share in respect of 2014 to shareholders on the register of members on 22 May 2015. This recommendation has been incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the statement of financial position.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial statements is set out below.

	Year ended 31 December				
	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000	2012 HK\$'000	2011 HK\$'000	2010 HK\$'000
RESULTS					
REVENUE	473,291	354,045	293,992	383,312	513,700
Exchange gains/(loss), net Impairment loss of an	(246)	3,288	3,683	980	1,481
available-for-sale investment Commission expenses Employee benefit expenses Depreciation expenses	(103,838) (150,214) (5,884)	(2,623) (70,397) (114,263) (9,066)	(2,330) (48,569) (111,133) (9,361)	(64,702) (117,498) (8,802)	(1,642) (94,535) (118,437) (4,175)
Interest expenses for financial service operations Other expenses, net	(14,273) (97,342)	(10,531) (98,025)	(442) (94,030)	(1,508) (113,973)	(1,149) (92,683)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX	101,494	52,428	31,810	77,809	202,560
Income tax expense	(7,567)	(5,185)	(1,649)	(3,801)	(11,598)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR	93,927	47,243	30,161	74,008	190,962
Attributable to: Ordinary equity holders of the Company	93,934	47,239	30,151	74,003	190,976
Non-controlling interests	(7)	4	10	5	(14)
	93,927	47,243	30,161	74,008	190,962
	As at 31 December				
	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000	2012 HK\$'000	2011 HK\$'000	2010 HK\$'000
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS					
TOTAL ASSETS	6,089,134	5,065,225	4,578,048	3,373,060	3,652,781
TOTAL LIABILITIES	(4,772,638)	(3,819,112)	(3,373,289)	(2,186,334)	(2,482,820)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS	(2,631)	(2,638)	(2,634)	(2,624)	(2,619)
	1,313,865	1,243,475	1,202,125	1,184,102	1,167,342

The above summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 26 to the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

On 19 January 2015, the Company completed the rights issue by issuing 265,379,563 new shares. Please refer to the Company's related announcements and listing documents for details.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in note 27(b) to the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2014, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), amounted to HK\$143,166,000 of which HK\$39,807,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for 2014.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

No charitable contribution was made by the Group during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company's issued shares) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers.

The Group is a provider of financial services. In the opinion of the directors, it is therefore of no value to disclose details of the Group's suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:
Chu Xiaoming (Chairman)
Lu Wenqing
Guo Chun (Chief Executive Officer)
Lee Man Chun Tony

Non-executive directors: Chang Pen Tsao (resigned on 12 December 2014) Zhang Lei

Independent non-executive directors:
Ng Wing Hang Patrick
Kwok Lam Kwong Larry
Zhuo Fumin

In accordance with Article 104(A) of the Company's Articles of Association and in compliance with Code Provision A.4.3 of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Listing Rules"), Messrs. Guo Chun, Lee Man Chun Tony, Ng Wing Hang Patrick, Kwok Lam Kwong Larry and Zhuo Fumin will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Messrs. Ng Wing Hang Patrick, Kwok Lam Kwong Larry and Zhuo Fumin and as at the date of this report, still considers them to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY AND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE GROUP

Executive directors

Chu Xiaoming - Chairman

Mr. Chu Xiaoming, aged 52, was appointed as an Executive Director and the Chairman of the Company on 20 December 2010. Mr. Chu is a Non-independent Director and the Chairman of the Board of Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co., Ltd.), which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and a Director and the Chairman of the Board of its wholly-owned subsidiary, Shenwan Hongyuan Securities Co., Ltd. Prior to joining Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd. in 2010, he was the General Manager of Zhonghai Trust Co., Ltd. Mr. Chu graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a master degree in Business Administration (International) in 2003 and obtained the qualification as Senior Economist issued by Industrial and Commercial Bank of China in 1994.

Lu Wenging

Mr. Lu Wenqing, aged 56, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company in August 1996 and was re-designated as an Executive Director of the Company in September 2004. Mr. Lu was also the Vice President of Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd. until end March 2014 when he was nominated as the Designated Vice Chairman of Shenwan Hongyuan (International) Holdings Limited (formerly known as Shenyin Wanguo (H.K.) Holdings Limited). He graduated from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics. He also holds a Master's Degree in Business Administration from The Asia (Macau) International Open University and W.P. Carey School of Business at Arizona State University. Prior to joining the former Shanghai Shenyin Securities Co., Ltd., Mr. Lu served as a senior officer in Shanghai Trust & Investment Corporation of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China and as an attaché of the Chinese Embassy in Gabon.

Guo Chun - Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Guo Chun, aged 50, was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in May 2000 and as Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 9 March 2012. Mr. Guo began his career with the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Shanghai Branch in 1983. Other than the banking business, he has been working in the securities industry of the People's Republic of China (the "PRC") since 1987 and has 27 years' extensive experience in stockbroking and investment banking in the PRC. In 1990, Mr. Guo joined the former Shanghai Shenyin Securities Co., Ltd. and served as a regional superintendent in Shanghai. After the merger of Shanghai Shenyin Securities Co., Ltd. and Shanghai International Securities Co., Ltd., he was appointed as the Deputy Managing Director of Shenwan Hongyuan (International) Holdings Limited on secondment to Hong Kong in early 1997, and was the Managing Director of the International Business Division of Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd. from May 2008 to March 2012 and re-appointed in February 2014. He subsequently became the Managing Director of the International Business Division of Shenwan Hongyuan Securities Co., Ltd, a newly established wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd., in January 2015. Mr. Guo holds a Master's Degree in Business Administration from Murdoch University, Perth, Australia and an Executive Master of Business Administration degree from Arizona State University, United States of America.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY AND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE GROUP (Cont'd)

Executive directors (Cont'd)

Lee Man Chun Tony

Mr. Lee Man Chun Tony, aged 61, was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in June 2000 and as Chief Executive Officer of the Company from July 2000 to 9 March 2012. Mr. Lee is an Independent Non-executive Director of China Chengtong Development Group Limited, which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He is an Associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has more than 30 years' experience in accounting, finance and banking. Mr. Lee held senior positions with Standard Chartered Bank and Sanwa International Finance Ltd. before he joined the Group in 1995. Mr. Lee obtained a Master of Business Administration from Chu Hai College of Higher Education in 1981.

Non-executive director

Zhang Lei

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 46, is a Non-executive Director of the Company. He graduated from Shanghai Jiaotong University as doctor of philosophy of Financial Management Engineering in 1997. Mr. Zhang has many years of experience in the securities industry. He has previously worked for Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd. as Deputy Manager of Client Asset Management Division. Mr. Zhang joined Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Limited in July 2006, and currently serves as its Deputy General Manager of Finance & Planning Department. He also presently holds directorships in certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Limited and acts as the responsible officer of SIIC Asset Management Company Limited.

Independent non-executive directors

Ng Wing Hang Patrick

Mr. Ng Wing Hang Patrick, aged 62, is an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Ng is a practising Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong and is the Managing Director of Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited, a certified public accountants firm in Hong Kong. He also serves as an Independent Non-executive Director of Far East Hotels and Entertainment Limited, which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Ng has been an Independent Non-executive Director of Ming Kei Holdings Limited, which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, until he resigned on 26 June 2012. Mr. Ng graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1975.

Kwok Lam Kwong Larry, B.B.S., J.P.

Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong Larry, aged 59, is an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Kwok is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and is also qualified to practise as a solicitor in Australia, England and Wales and Singapore. He is also qualified as a Chartered Accountant in England and Wales and a CPA in Hong Kong and Australia. Mr. Kwok graduated from the University of Sydney, Australia with Bachelor's Degrees in Economics and Laws as well as a Master's Degree in Laws. He also obtained the Advanced Management Program Diploma from the Harvard Business School. Mr. Kwok is currently a Non-executive Director of First Shanghai Investments Limited and also an Independent Non-executive Director of Café de Coral Holdings Limited, Pacific Andes International Holdings Limited, Starlite Holdings Limited and Hang Fat Ginseng Holdings Company Limited, all of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY AND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE GROUP (Cont'd)

Independent non-executive directors (Cont'd)

Zhuo Fumin

Mr. Zhuo Fumin, aged 63, is an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Zhuo graduated from Shanghai Jiaotong University's Electrical Engineering School and holds a Master's Degree in Economics conferred by Fudan University. He has more than 40 years of experience in running joint stock companies and in corporate management and has extensive capital market experience. Mr. Zhuo currently serves as a Partner in GGV Capital. He also serves as an Independent Director of Daqo New Energy Corp., which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange, an Independent Director of China Enterprise Company Limited, which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, a Non-executive Director of Besunyun Holdings Company Limited and an Independent Non-executive Director of SRE Group Limited, which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Zhuo has been an Independent Director of Focus Media Holding Ltd., which was previously listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market and delisted in May 2013, and a Director of Grandhope Biotech Co., Ltd., which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, until he resigned on 5 August 2013.

Senior management

Bai Youge - Deputy General Manager

Mr. Bai Youge, aged 52, was appointed as Deputy General Manager of the Group in 2004 and Deputy General Manager of the International Business Division of Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd. in December 2013 and became Deputy General Manager of the International Business Division of Shenwan Hongyuan Securities Co., Ltd., a newly established wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd., in January 2015. Mr. Bai used to be a non-practising member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has previously worked for Arthur Andersen & Co. He joined the former Shanghai International Securities Co., Ltd. in 1994 as the Deputy General Manager of the Investment Bank Division. After the merger of Shanghai International Securities Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Shenyin Securities Co., Ltd. in 1996, Mr. Bai was appointed as the Deputy General Manager of the International Business and Brokerage Departments of Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd. respectively, and has over 10 years' experience in the securities field of the PRC. He graduated from Sichuan University in Mathematics and holds a Master's Degree in Economics from the Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences and a Master's Degree in Finance and Securities from the University of Reading in the United Kingdom.

Fu Xingyi – Deputy General Manager

Mr. Fu Xingyi, aged 52, has been appointed as the Deputy General Manager of the Group since November 2007. Mr. Fu was appointed as the Assistant to General Manager of the Group in 2004. He previously worked for the International Business Division, Investment Bank Division and Merger & Acquisition Division of Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd. and has more than 10 years' experience in corporate finance. Mr. Fu holds a Bachelor's Degree from Fudan University in Shanghai.

Yang Ming – Deputy General Manager

Mr. Yang Ming, aged 40, has been appointed as Deputy General Manager of the Group in July 2013. Mr. Yang was appointed as the Assistant to General Manager of the International Business Division of Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd. in May 2013 and became Assistant to General Manager of the International Business Division of Shenwan Hongyuan Securities Co., Ltd., a newly established wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd., in January 2015. He previously worked for Shanghai Shenyin Wanguo Research & Consulting Limited as Analyst and Manager of Overseas Development Center, and has more than 10 years' experience in securities research. Mr. Yang graduated from the University of Limburg in Belgium as a Master Graduate Student.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY AND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE GROUP (Cont'd)

Senior management (Cont'd)

Wong Che Keung Leslie – Chief Operating Officer and Company Secretary

Mr. Wong Che Keung Leslie, aged 50, is the Chief Operating Officer and Company Secretary of the Group. Besides company secretarial duties, Mr. Wong is also responsible for overseeing accounting, securities settlement, credit, treasury and information technology activities as well as legal matters of the Group. Mr. Wong once served as the Head of Compliance of the Group and subsequently, a Director of Shenyin Wanguo Securities (H.K.) Limited and the Finance Director before succeeding to the current position of the Chief Operating Officer of the Group in 2010. Mr. Wong was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Group in December 2004. Prior to joining the Group in 1996, he has worked in the Securities and Futures Commission for 7 years and in the stockbroking and treasury field for a further 2 years. Mr. Wong is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and obtained his Bachelor's Degree in Economics at the University of Hong Kong and a Master's Degree in Business Administration at the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He was appointed as a member of the Cash Market Consultative Panel of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited on 1 June 2012.

Ting Kay Loong Willis – Head of Corporate Finance

Mr. Ting Kay Loong Willis, aged 53, is the Head of Corporate Finance of the Group. Mr. Ting has over 26 years of experience in the securities industry. Prior to joining the Group in 2006, he worked for several international financial institutions and listed companies in Hong Kong, responsible for capital market activities and equity investments. Mr. Ting holds a Bachelor of Economics Degree from Macquarie University, Australia and is a fellow member of the Australian Society of Certified Public Accountants.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The directors' fees are subject to shareholders' approval at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board of the Company with reference to directors' duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTOR'S INTEREST IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, none of the directors and the chief executive of the Company was taken to be interested or deemed to have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange") pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in the Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES

(a) As at 31 December 2014

As at 31 December 2014, the interests of substantial shareholders, other than directors or chief executive of the Company, who had interests or short positions of 5% or more of the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company, were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company

Name	Capacity and nature of interests	Number of ordinary shares held (Note)	Percentage of the Company's issued shares
Shenyin Wanguo Holdings (B.V.I.) Limited ("SWHBVI")	Directly beneficially owned	402,502,313(1)	50.56
Venture-Some Investments Limited ("VSI")	Through controlled corporation	402,502,313 ⁽¹⁾	50.56
Shenwan Hongyuan (International) Holdings Limited (formerly known as Shenyin Wanguo (H.K.) Holdings Limited)	Through controlled corporation Directly beneficially owned	402,502,313 ⁽¹⁾ 133,257,125 ⁽²⁾	50.56 16.73
Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co., Ltd.)	Through controlled corporation	535,759,438 ^{(1) (2)}	67.29

Note:

- (1) SWHBVI is held directly as to 50.52% by VSI. VSI is wholly-owned by Shenwan Hongyuan (International) Holdings Limited. Shenwan Hongyuan (International) Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd. Hence, VSI, Shenwan Hongyuan (International) Holdings Limited and Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd. are deemed to be interested in the same parcel of 402,502,313 shares held by SWHBVI under the SFO. These shares comprise (i) 268,334,875 shares then held, and (ii) 134,167,438 unissued shares, being the number of rights shares be allotted upon completion of the rights issue on the basis of one rights share for every two shares of the Company then held at subscription price of HK\$2.342 per rights share (the "Right Issue") (please refer to the Company's related announcements and prospectus for details).
- (2) Shenwan Hongyuan (International) Holdings Limited also held directly 133,257,125 shares of the Company. These shares comprise (i) 2,045,000 shares then held, (ii) 1,022,500 unissued shares, being the number of rights shares be allotted upon completion of the Rights Issue, and (iii) 130,189,625 unissued shares, being the maximum number of rights shares which Shenwan Hongyuan (International) Holdings Limited (as underwriter of the Rights Issue) has underwritten in respect of the Rights Issue (please refer to the Company's related announcements and prospectus for details). Hence, Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd. is also deemed to be interested in the same parcel of 133,257,125 shares held by Shenwan Hongyuan (International) Holdings Limited under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the Company had not been notified of any person who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company, which were required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

(b) As at the date of this report

As at the date of this report, the interests of substantial shareholders, other than directors or chief executive of the Company, who had interests or short positions of 5% or more of the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company, were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company

Name	Capacity and nature of interests	Number of ordinary shares held (Note)	Percentage of the Company's issued shares
Shenyin Wanguo Holdings (B.V.I.) Limited ("SWHBVI")	Directly beneficially owned	402,502,312(1)	50.56
Venture-Some Investments Limited ("VSI")	Through controlled corporation	402,502,312 ⁽¹⁾	50.56
Shenwan Hongyuan (International) Holdings Limited (formerly known as Shenyin Wanguo (H.K.) Holdings Limited)	Through controlled corporation Directly beneficially owned	402,502,312 ⁽¹⁾ 3,306,257 ⁽²⁾	50.56 0.42
Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co., Ltd.)	Through controlled corporation	405,808,569 ^{(1) (2)}	50.98

Note:

- (1) SWHBVI is held directly as to 50.52% by VSI. VSI is wholly-owned by Shenwan Hongyuan (International) Holdings Limited. Shenwan Hongyuan (International) Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd. Hence, VSI, Shenwan Hongyuan (International) Holdings Limited and Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd. are deemed to be interested in the same parcel of 402,502,312 shares held by SWHBVI under the SFO.
- (2) Shenwan Hongyuan (International) Holdings Limited also held directly 3,306,257 shares of the Company. Hence, Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd. is also deemed to be interested in the same parcel of 3,306,257 shares held by Shenwan Hongyuan (International) Holdings Limited under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, the Company had not been notified of any person who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company, which were required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The connected transactions and continuing connected transactions of the Company and the Group during the year are disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in note 30 to the financial statements.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the continuing connected transactions as set out in note 30 to the financial statements and confirmed that these transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) in according to the agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company's auditors, were engaged to report on the Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors' letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company's total number of issued shares was held by the public as at the date of this report.

DIRECTOR'S INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following directors are considered to have interests in businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules, as set out below:

Mr. Chu Xiaoming (an Executive Director and the Chairman of the Company) is a director and the chairman of the board of Shenwan Hongyuan Securities Co., Ltd which is involved in securities business.

Mr. Guo Chun (an Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company) is the managing director of the international business division of Shenwan Hongyuan Securities Co., Ltd which is involved in securities business.

Mr. Zhang Lei (a Non-executive Director of the Company) is a director and responsible officer of SIIC Asset Management Company Limited which is involved in the provision of asset management services.

DIRECTOR'S INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS (Cont'd)

Any director(s) who is/are or deemed to be interested in any proposed transaction(s) will have his/ their interest fully disclosed and will abstain from voting at the relevant resolution(s) in accordance with the applicable requirements of the Articles of Associations, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm's length from, the businesses of such companies/ entitles.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting period are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chu Xiaoming
Chairman

Hong Kong 6 March 2015

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT



To the shareholders of Shenyin Wanguo (H.K.) Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenyin Wanguo (H.K.) Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (together, the "Group") set out on pages 42 to 110, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors' responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 80 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (Cont'd)

To the shareholders of Shenyin Wanguo (H.K.) Limited (Cont'd) (Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong
6 March 2015

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 December 2014

	Notes	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000
REVENUE	5	473,291	354,045
Exchange gain/(loss), net Impairment loss of an available-for-sale		(246)	3,288
investment	6, 16	_	(2,623)
Commission expenses		(103,838)	(70,397)
Employee benefit expenses	6	(150,214)	(114,263)
Depreciation expenses	13	(5,884)	(9,066)
Interest expenses for financial service operations	6	(14,273)	(10,531)
Other expenses, net		(97,342)	(98,025)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX	6	101,494	52,428
Income tax expense	9	(7,567)	(5,185)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR		93,927	47,243
Attributable to:			
Ordinary equity holders of the Company	10	93,934	47,239
Non-controlling interests		(7)	4
		93,927	47,243
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO			
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY			
Basic and diluted	12	HK17.7 cents	HK8.9 cents

Details of the dividend proposed for the year are disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December 2014

	Notes	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR		93,927	47,243
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)			
Items that may be reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in subsequent periods Available-for-sale investments:			
Changes in fair value – gain/(loss) Reclassification adjustments for loss/(gain) included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss		(2,314)	369
gain on disposalimpairment loss	6, 16		(920) 2,623
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX		(2,314)	2,072
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR		91,613	49,315
Attributable to: Ordinary equity holders of the Company Non-controlling interests	10	91,620 (7)	49,311
		91,613	49,315

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2014

	Notes	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS			
Property, plant and equipment	13	13,259	10,809
Stock and Futures Exchange trading rights	14	4,212	4,212
Other assets		43,983	30,757
Available-for-sale investments	16	7,610	9,924
Deferred tax assets	17	236	223
Total non-current assets		69,300	55,925
CURRENT ASSETS			
Investments at fair value through profit or loss	16	199,879	138,321
Accounts receivable	18	1,140,380	546,474
Loans and advances	19	1,717,634	1,518,457
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables	20	24,442	17,180
Tax recoverable		148	386
Bank balances held on behalf of clients	21	2,664,938	2,510,756
Cash and bank balances	22	272,413	277,726
Total current assets		6,019,834	5,009,300
CURRENT LIABILITIES			
Accounts payable	23	3,653,108	2,943,689
Other payables and accruals	24	105,370	62,718
Interest-bearing bank borrowings	25	1,009,097	809,381
Tax payable		4,793	2,818
Total current liabilities		4,772,368	3,818,606
NET CURRENT ASSETS		1,247,466	1,190,694
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES		1,316,766	1,246,619
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY			
Deferred tax liability	17	270	506
Net assets		1,316,496	1,246,113

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Cont'd)

31 December 2014

	Notes	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000
EQUITY Equity attributable to ordinary equity holders of			
the Company			
Share capital	26	580,120	265,380
Share premium		_	314,740
Other reserves	27(a)	733,745	663,355
		1,313,865	1,243,475
Non-controlling interests		2,631	2,638
Total equity		1,316,496	1,246,113

Chu XiaomingGuo ChunDirectorDirector

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2014

Attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company

					ore to oraniar, equit	,	/				
	Notes	Share capital HK\$'000 (Note 26)	Share premium account HK\$'000 (Note 26)	Capital reserve HK\$'000	Available- for-sale investment revaluation reserve HK\$'000	General reserve HK\$'000	Retained profits HK\$'000	Proposed final dividend HK\$'000	Total HK\$'000	Non- controlling interests HK\$'000	Total equity HK\$'000
At 1 January 2013		265,380	314,740	15	409	138	613,482	7,962	1,202,126	2,634	1,204,760
Profit for the year Other comprehensive income for the year: Change in fair value of available-for-sale investments, net of tax	16	-	-	-	2,072	-	47,239	-	47,239 2,072	4	47,243 2,072
Total comprehensive income for the year					2,072		47,239	_	49,311	4	49,315
Final 2012 dividend declared and paid Proposed final 2013 dividend	11		<u>-</u>	-	- -	- -	(21,230)	(7,962) 21,230	(7,962)		(7,962)
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014		265,380	314,740	15*	2,481*	138*	639,491*	21,230*	1,243,475	2,638	1,246,113
Profit for the year Other comprehensive income for the year: Change in fair value of available-for-sale		-	-	-	-	-	93,934	-	93,934	(7)	93,927
investments, net of tax	16				(2,314)				(2,314)		(2,314)
Total comprehensive income for the year		265,380	314,740	15	167	138	733,425	21,230	1,335,095	2,631	1,337,726
Final 2013 dividend declared and paid Proposed final 2014 dividend Transition to no-par value regime	11	- - 314,740	- - (314,740)	- - -	-	- - -	(39,807)	(21,230) 39,807 -	(21,230)	-	(21,230)
At 31 December 2014		580,120	-	15*	167*	138*	693,618*	39,807*	1,313,865	2,631	1,316,496

^{*} These reserve accounts comprise the other reserves of HK\$733,745,000 (2013: HK\$663,355,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2014

	Notes	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Profit before tax Adjustments for: Fair value gain from a listed		101,494	52,428
available-for-sale investment (transfer from equity on disposal) Depreciation Impairment loss of an available-for-sale	6 13	- 5,884	(920) 9,066
investment Gain on disposals of items of property,	6, 16	-	2,623
plant and equipment	6		(60)
Increase in other assets (Increase)/decrease in investments at fair value		107,378 (13,226)	63,137 (14,475)
through profit or loss		(61,558)	221,700
Increase in accounts receivable		(593,906)	(68,227)
Increase in loans and advances Increase in prepayments, deposits and		(199,177)	(379,970)
other receivables Increase in bank balances held on behalf of		(7,262)	(1,294)
clients		(154,182)	(175,532)
Increase in accounts payable		709,419	251,148
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals		42,652	(930)
Cash used in operations		(169,862)	(104,443)
Hong Kong profits tax (paid)/refunded		(5,533)	1,436
Overseas taxes paid		(70)	(206)
Net cash flows used in operating activities		(175,465)	(103,213)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES			
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment Proceeds from disposals of available-for-sale	13	(8,334)	(2,826)
investments		_	3,069
Proceeds from disposals of items of property, plant and equipment			60
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities		(8,334)	303

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

Year ended 31 December 2014

	Notes	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Net proceeds from bank loans Dividend paid		268,843 (21,230)	187,036 (7,962)
Net cash flows from financing activities		247,613	179,074
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND BANK BALANCES Cash and bank balances at beginning of year		63,814 208,381	76,164 132,217
CASH AND BANK BALANCES AT END OF YEAR		272,195	208,381
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND BANK BALANCES Cash and bank balances Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of less than three months when acquired	22 22	272,413 	191,356 86,370
Cash and bank balances as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position Bank overdrafts	25	272,413 (218)	277,726 (69,345)
Cash and bank balances as stated in the consolidated statement of cash flows		272,195	208,381
Net cash flows used in operating activities include: Interest received Dividend received		24,000 5,759	18,988 6,768

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2014

	Notes	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS			
Interests in subsidiaries	15	718,909	594,888
CURRENT ASSETS			
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables	20	2,195	1,299
Cash and bank balances	22	7,940	7,244
Total current assets		10,135	8,543
CURRENT LIABILITIES			
Other payables and accruals	24	5,758	2,657
NET CURRENT ASSETS		4,377	5,886
Net assets		723,286	600,774
EQUITY			
Share capital	26	580,120	265,380
Share premium	26	-	314,740
Other reserves	27(b)	143,166	20,654
Total equity		723,286	600,774

Chu Xiaoming *Director*

Guo Chun *Director*

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2014

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Shenyin Wanguo (H.K.) Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office of the Company is situated at Level 19, 28 Hennessy Road, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal activities:

- brokerage business
- corporate finance business
- asset management business
- financing and loans business
- investment and other business

The Company is a subsidiary of Shenyin Wanguo Holdings (B.V.I.) Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability. In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of the Company is Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co., Ltd., which was established in the People's Republic of China (the "PRC") and listed in Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000166).

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements also comply with the applicable requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance relating to the preparation of financial statements, which for this financial year and the comparative period continue to be those of the predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), "Accounts and Audit", which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for available-for-sale investments and investments at fair value through profit or loss which have been measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK\$") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group") for the year ended 31 December 2014. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the ordinary equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

31 December 2014

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control described in the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards and a new interpretation issued by the HKICPA, which are effective for the accounting period beginning on 1 January 2014.

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011) Amendments	Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011) – Investment Entities
HKAS 32 Amendments	Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
HKAS 36 Amendments	Amendments to HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
HKAS 39 Amendments	Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement – Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21	Levies
HKFRS 2 Amendment included in Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle	Amendment to HKFRS 2 included in Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle – <i>Definition of Vesting Condition</i>
HKFRS 3 Amendment included in Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle	Amendment to HKFRS 3 included in Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle – Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a Business Combination
HKFRS 13 Amendment included in Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle	Amendment to HKFRS 13 included in Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle – <i>Short-term Receivables and Payables</i>
HKFRS 1 Amendment included in Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle	Amendment to HKFRS 1 included in Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle – <i>Meaning of Effective HKFRSs</i>

The adoption of the above revised standards and interpretation has had no significant financial effect on these financial statements.

31 December 2014

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 9	Financial Instruments 1
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)	Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture ²
Amendments to HKFRS 11	Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations ²
HKFRS 14	Regulatory Deferral Accounts ³
HKFRS 15	Revenue from Contracts with Customers 4
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38	Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation ²
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41	Agriculture: Bearer Plants ²
Amendments to HKAS 19	Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions 5
Amendments to HKAS 27 (2011)	Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements ²
Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle	Amendments to a number of HKFRSs ⁵
Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle	Amendments to a number of HKFRSs ⁵
Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle	Amendments to a number of HKFRSs ²

- Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
- ² Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
- Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not applicable to the Group
- ⁴ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
- ⁵ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 "Accounts and Audit" of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) will come into operation as from the Company's first financial year commencing after 3 March 2014 in accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance, which will be the year ending 31 December 2015. The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the expected impact of the changes in the period of initial application of Part 9 of the Ordinance.

31 December 2014

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED (Cont'd)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue, information about performance obligations, changes in contract asset and liability account balances between periods and key judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2017 and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

- (a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
- (b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
- (c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The Company's interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and equity investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
- Level 2 based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly
- Level 3 based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other than deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired assets.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill and certain financial assets is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

- (a) the party is a person or a close member of that person's family and that person
 - (i) has control or joint control over the Group;
 - (ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
 - (iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Related parties (Cont'd)

- (b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:
 - (i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;
 - (ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);
 - (iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;
 - (iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity;
 - (v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;
 - (vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); and
 - (vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Cont'd)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land under finance leases Over the lease terms

Buildings 4%

Leasehold improvements

Over the lease terms

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

15% – 33¹/₃%

Motor vehicles 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets, which consist of the Stock and Futures Exchange trading rights, being the eligibility rights to trade on or through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited with indefinite useful lives, are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of the Stock and Futures Exchange trading rights is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Cont'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with positive and negative net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies set out for "Revenue recognition" below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and club debentures. Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, or until the investment is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policies set out for "Revenue recognition" below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont'd)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date at reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
- the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass-through" arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether impairment exists for individual financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. They must do collective assessment if the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit or loss.

31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost. "Significant" is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and "prolonged" against the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss – measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss – is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is "significant" or "prolonged" requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include accounts payable, other payables and certain accruals, and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Cash and bank balances

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Bank balances held on behalf of clients

The Group has classified the clients' monies as bank balances held on behalf of clients under the current assets section of the consolidated statement of financial position and recognised a corresponding accounts payable to respective clients on grounds that is liable for any loss or misappropriation of clients' monies.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
- in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

- when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

- (a) income from brokerage business, on a trade date basis;
- (b) income from corporate finance business including underwriting commission, when the obligation under the underwriting or sub-underwriting agreement has expired;
- (c) service income from asset management business including management fee and investment advisory fee income, as the underlying services have been provided;
- (d) interest income from financing and loans business, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;
- (e) income from investment and other business including realised fair value gains or losses on listed and unlisted investments trading, on a trade date basis and unrealised fair value gains or losses on change in fair value at the end of the reporting period; and
- (f) dividend income, when the shareholders' rights to receive payment has been established.

Employee benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme") under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees. The Group also retains its previous retirement scheme (the "ORSO Scheme") registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance as a top-up benefit for its employees.

Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees' relevant income or basic salaries, whichever is greater, and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme and the ORSO Scheme. For the ORSO Scheme, when the contribution exceeds the statutory maximum requirements, the excess contribution is credited as the employer's voluntary contribution to the ORSO Scheme. The employer's mandatory contributions to the MPF Scheme vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme. The employer's voluntary contributions to the ORSO Scheme vest with the employees according to the vesting scale of the ORSO Scheme. Forfeited contributions in respect of employees who leave the Group before their contributions fully vest are available to the Group to offset its future voluntary contributions.

The assets of the MPF Scheme and the ORSO Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in independently administered funds.

31 December 2014

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are included in other reserves within the equity section of the statement of financial position, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

31 December 2014

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

(a) Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and recognises movements of their fair values in equity. When the fair value declines, management makes assumptions about the decline in value to determine whether there is an impairment that should be recognised in the statement of profit or loss. During the year ended 31 December 2014, no impairment loss (2013: HK\$2,623,000) was recognised for an available-for-sale investment.

(b) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2014 was HK\$183,909,000 (2013: HK\$211,850,000). Further details are contained in note 17 to the financial statements.

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on their services and has five reportable operating segments as follows:

- (a) brokerage business;
- (b) corporate finance business;
- (c) asset management business;
- (d) financing and loans business; and
- (e) investment and other business.

31 December 2014

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable and unlisted club debentures included in available-for-sale investments as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities and tax payable as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

	Brokerage business HK\$'000	Corporate finance business HK\$'000	Asset management business HK\$'000	Financing and loans business HK\$'000	Investment and other business HK\$'000	Total HK\$'000
Year ended 31 December 2014						
Segment revenue from external customers	262,899	59,281	11,475	123,961	15,675	473,291
Segment results and profit/(loss) before tax	41,939	18,294	366	47,941	(7,046)	101,494
Segment assets	4,025,333	62,333	57,424	1,732,243	208,947	6,086,280
Reconciliation: Deferred tax assets Tax recoverable Unlisted club debentures included in available-for-sale						236 148
investments						2,470
Total assets						6,089,134
Segment liabilities	3,725,735	9,552	2,249	1,027,689	2,350	4,767,575
Reconciliation: Deferred tax liability Tax payable						270 4,793
Total liabilities						4,772,638
Other segment information: Interest expenses				14,273		14,273
Depreciation expenses	1,705	365	333	14,2/3	3,481	5,884
Capital expenditure	2,892	1,751	579		3,112	8,334

31 December 2014

4. **OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION** (Cont'd)

	Brokerage business HK\$'000 (restated)	Corporate finance business HK\$'000 (restated)	Asset management business HK\$'000 (restated)	Financing and loans business HK\$'000 (restated)	Investment and other business HK\$'000 (restated)	Total HK\$'000 (restated)
Year ended 31 December 2013						
Segment revenue from external customers	208,050	22,915	9,261	95,689	18,130	354,045
Segment results and profit/(loss) before tax	11,066	(3,620)	(2,644)	39,928	7,698	52,428
Segment assets	3,319,089	47,475	16,303	1,531,352	147,927	5,062,146
Reconciliation: Deferred tax assets Tax recoverable Unlisted club debentures included in available-for-sale investments						223 386
						2,470
Total assets						5,065,225
Segment liabilities	2,984,643	3,532	1,557	823,400	2,656	3,815,788
Reconciliation: Deferred tax liability Tax payable						506 2,818
Total liabilities						3,819,112
Other segment information:						
Interest expenses	-	-	-	10,531	-	10,531
Depreciation expenses	4,403	430	110		4,123	9,066
Impairment loss of an available-for-sale investment					2,623	2,623
Capital expenditure	1,307		_	_	1,519	2,826
onponditor.	.,557				.,5.5	

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation.

31 December 2014

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Geographical information

The Group's operations are substantially located in Hong Kong and substantially all noncurrent assets of the Group are located in Hong Kong. Therefore, no further analysis of geographical information is presented.

Information about major customers

As no customer of the Group from whom the revenue derived individually has amounted to over 10% of the Group's total revenue during the year, no information about major customers is presented.

5. REVENUE

An analysis of revenue, which is also the Group's turnover is as follows:

	Grou	p
	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000
Brokerage business:		
Commission on securities dealing		
 Hong Kong securities 	196,560	152,586
 Other than Hong Kong securities 	24,184	18,616
Commission on futures and		
options contracts dealing	31,790	28,031
Handling fee income	4,875	4,605
Research fee income and others	5,490	4,212
	262,899	208,050
Corporate finance business:		
Initial public offering, placing, underwriting and sub-underwriting commission	37,787	12,416
Financial advisory, compliance advisory,	,	·
sponsorship fee income and others	21,494	10,499
	59,281	22,915
Asset management business:		
Management fee and investment		
advisory fee income	11,331	9,261
Performance fee income	144	
	11,475	9,261

31 December 2014

5. REVENUE (Cont'd)

	Group		
	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000	
Financing and loans business: Interest income from loans to cash	05.004	72.700	
clients and margin clients	95,021	73,798	
Interest income from initial public offering loans Interest income from banks and others	4,940	2,903	
interest income from banks and others	24,000	18,988	
	123,961	95,689	
Investment and other business: Net realised and unrealised gains on financial assets			
Listed investments	1,417	1,991	
 Unlisted investments 	7,682	9,371	
Dividend income and interest income	,	,	
 Listed investments 	866	532	
 Unlisted investments 	5,710	6,236	
		<u> </u>	
	15,675	18,130	
	473,291	354,045	

31 December 2014

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

	Group		
	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000	
Employee benefit expenses			
(including directors' remuneration – note 7):			
Salaries and other staff costs	144,178	108,563	
Retirement benefit scheme contributions	7,505	6,766	
Less: Forfeited contributions	(1,469)	(1,066)	
Net retirement benefit scheme contributions*	6,036	5,700	
	150,214	114,263	
Interest expenses on bank loans and			
overdrafts wholly repayable within five years	14,273	10,531	
Minimum lease payments under operating leases	11,273	10,331	
in respect of land and buildings	29,104	31,251	
Auditors' remuneration	1,980	1,980	
Gain on disposals of items of property,			
plant and equipment	_	(60)	
Gain on disposal of a listed available-for-sale			
investment	_	(920)	
Impairment loss of an available-for-sale investment	_	2,623	

^{*} At 31 December 2014, the Group did not have forfeited contributions (2013: HK\$29,000) available to reduce its contributions to the retirement benefit schemes in future.

31 December 2014

7. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors' remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Listing Rules") and section 78 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

	Group		
	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000	
Fees	540	540	
Other emoluments: Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Retirement benefit scheme contributions	8,079 200	5,220 241	
	8,279	5,461	
	8,819	6,001	

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were as follows:

	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000
Ng Wing Hang Patrick Kwok Lam Kwong Larry Zhuo Fumin	180 180 180	180 180 180
	540	540

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive directors during the year (2013: Nil).

31 December 2014

7. **DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION** (Cont'd)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors

The remuneration paid to executive directors and non-executive directors during the year was as follows:

	Fees HK\$'000	Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind HK\$'000	Retirement benefit scheme contributions HK\$'000	Total remuneration HK\$'000
2014				
Executive directors:				
Chu Xiaoming	_	_	_	_
Lu Wenqing	_	-	_	_
Guo Chun	-	4,812	-	4,812
Lee Man Chun Tony		3,267	200	3,467
		0.070	200	0.270
		8,079	200	8,279
Non-executive directors:				
Chang Pen Tsao*	_	_	_	_
Zhang Lei	_	_	_	_
	_	8,079	200	8,279

^{*} On 12 December 2014, Chang Pen Tsao resigned as a non-executive director of the Company.

31 December 2014

7. **DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION** (Cont'd)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (Cont'd)

The remuneration paid to executive directors and non-executive directors during the year was as follows: (Cont'd)

		Salaries, allowances	Retirement benefit	
		and benefits	scheme	Total
	Fees	in kind	contributions	remuneration
	HK\$'000	HK\$'000	HK\$'000	HK\$'000
2013				
Executive directors:				
Chu Xiaoming	_	_	_	-
Lu Wenqing	_	_	_	_
Guo Chun	_	1,752	_	1,752
Lee Man Chun Tony		3,468	241	3,709
		5,220	241	5,461
Non-executive directors:				
Chang Pen Tsao	_	_	_	_
Huang Gang*	_	_	_	_
Zhang Lei*				
	<u> </u>	5,220	241	5,461

^{*} On 18 February 2013, Zhang Lei was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company and Huang Gang resigned as a non-executive director of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

31 December 2014

8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2013: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 7 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2013: three) non-directors, highest paid employees are as follows:

	Group		
	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000	
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Bonuses Retirement benefit scheme contributions	6,699 4,030 429	6,333 - 500	
	11,158	6,833	

The number of non-directors, highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is set out below:

Number of employees

	2014	2013
		1
HK\$1,500,001 to HK\$2,000,000 HK\$2,000,001 to HK\$2,500,000		1
HK\$2,500,001 to HK\$3,000,000	1	_
HK\$3,500,001 to HK\$4,000,000	1	_
HK\$4,500,001 to HK\$5,000,000	1	
	3	3

31 December 2014

9. INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

	Group		
	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000	
Current – Hong Kong			
Charge for the year	8,388	5,466	
Overprovision in prior years	(960)	(932)	
Current – Elsewhere	388	73	
Deferred (note 17)	(249)	578	
Total tax charge for the year	7,567	5,185	

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense for the year at the effective tax rate is as follows:

	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000
Profit before tax	101,494	52,428
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) Adjustments in respect of current tax of	16,747	8,651
previous periods	(960)	(932)
Income not subject to tax	(7,686)	(6,957)
Expenses not deductible for tax	3,384	3,445
Effect of different tax rates of companies operating		
in other jurisdictions	240	257
Tax losses utilised from previous periods	(4,106)	(2,752)
Temporary differences not recognised	(52)	3,473
Tax expense for the year at the Group's effective rate		
(2014: 7.5%; 2013: 9.9%)	7,567	5,185

31 December 2014

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014 includes a profit of HK\$143,742,000 (2013: loss of HK\$22,122,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company (note 27(b)).

11. DIVIDEND

	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000
Proposed final – HK5 cents (2013: HK4 cents) per ordinary share	39,807	21,230

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company of HK\$93,934,000 (2013: HK\$47,239,000) and 530,759,126 (2013: 530,759,126) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during those years.

31 December 2014

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

	Leasehold land and buildings HK\$'000	Leasehold improvements HK\$'000	Furniture, fixtures and equipment HK\$'000	Motor vehicles HK\$'000	Total HK\$'000
31 December 2014					
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014:					
Cost	4,095	23,651	41,768	2,463	71,977
Accumulated depreciation	(2,437)	(23,283)	(33,478)	(1,970)	(61,168)
Net carrying amount	1,658	368	8,290	493	10,809
Opening net carrying amount Additions	1,658	368 7,288	8,290 1,046	493 -	10,809 8,334
Depreciation provided during the year	(122)	(1,748)	(3,854)	(160)	(5,884)
daming the year					(5/661)
Closing net carrying amount	1,536	5,908	5,482	333	13,259
At 31 December 2014:					
Cost	4,095	23,098	42,254	2,463	71,910
Accumulated depreciation	(2,559)	(17,190)	(36,772)	(2,130)	(58,651)
Net carrying amount	1,536	5,908	5,482	333	13,259

31 December 2014

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

Group

	Leasehold land and buildings HK\$'000	Leasehold improvements HK\$'000	Furniture, fixtures and equipment HK\$'000	Motor vehicles HK\$'000	Total HK\$'000
31 December 2013					
At 1 January 2013:					
Cost	4,095	23,497	39,735	2,228	69,555
Accumulated depreciation	(2,314)	(19,781)	(28,183)	(2,228)	(52,506)
Net carrying amount	1,781	3,716	11,552		17,049
Opening net carrying amount	1,781	3,716	11,552	_	17,049
Additions	-	154	2,033	639	2,826
Depreciation provided during the year	(123)	(3,502)	(5,295)	(146)	(9,066)
Closing net carrying amount	1,658	368	8,290	493	10,809
At 31 December 2013:					
Cost	4,095	23,651	41,768	2,463	71,977
Accumulated depreciation	(2,437)	(23,283)	(33,478)	(1,970)	(61,168)
Net carrying amount	1,658	368	8,290	493	10,809

The Group's leasehold land and buildings included in property, plant and equipment with a net carrying amount of HK\$1,536,000 (2013: HK\$1,658,000) are situated in Hong Kong and are held under a long term lease.

31 December 2014

14. STOCK AND FUTURES EXCHANGE TRADING RIGHTS

	Group HK\$'000
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013, 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014	4,212

15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

	Company		
	2014	2013	
	HK\$'000	HK\$'000	
Unlisted shares, at cost	229,066	229,066	
Due from subsidiaries	608,103	596,374	
	837,169	825,440	
Due to subsidiaries	(13,853)	(114,462)	
	823,316	710,978	
Impairment#	(104,407)	(116,090)	
	718,909	594,888	

An impairment was recognised for certain unlisted investments and receivables with an aggregate carrying amount of HK\$281,697,000 (2013: HK\$266,119,000) out of HK\$823,316,000 (2013: HK\$710,978,000) (before deducting the impairment loss) because these subsidiaries have been making losses for years or had deficiency in assets at the end of the reporting period.

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries included in the Company's current assets and current liabilities of HK\$608,103,000 (2013: HK\$596,374,000) and HK\$13,853,000 (2013: HK\$114,462,000), respectively, are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment, except for an amount due from a subsidiary totalling HK\$170,000,000 (2013: HK\$170,000,000) which bears interest at a rate of Hong Kong dollar prime rate less 3% (2013: Hong Kong dollar prime rate less 3%) per annum. The directors of the Company do not intend to demand settlement/proceed with the repayment of the amounts involved within one year after the end of the reporting period.

31 December 2014

15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

All of the principal subsidiaries, unless otherwise indicated, are incorporated and operate in Hong Kong. Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name	Issued ordinary share capital	Percentage of equity attributable to the Company Direct Indirect				Principal activities
		2014	2013	2014	2013	
Shenyin Wanguo Securities (H.K.) Limited	HK\$130,000,000	100	100	-	-	Securities brokerage and margin financing
Shenyin Wanguo Futures (H.K.) Limited	HK\$30,000,000	100	100	-	-	Futures and options brokerage
Shenyin Wanguo Capital (H.K.) Limited	HK\$20,000,000	100	100	-	-	Corporate finance
Shenyin Wanguo Asset Management (Asia) Limited	HK\$10,000,000	-	-	100	100	Provision of asset management services
Shenyin Wanguo Research (H.K.) Limited	HK\$300,000	100	100	-	-	Provision of securities research services
Shenyin Wanguo Strategic Investments (H.K.) Limited	HK\$10,000	100	100	-	-	Securities trading and investment holding
Shenyin Wanguo Finance (H.K.) Limited	HK\$25,000,000	100	100	-	-	Provision of financial services
Shenyin Wanguo Enterprises (H.K.) Limited	HK\$15,000,000	100	100	-	-	Provision of management and treasury services
Shenyin Wanguo Online Limited	НК\$2	100	100	-)	Leasing of computer equipment

31 December 2014

15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Name	Issued ordinary share capital	Percentage of equity attributable to the Company Direct Indirect			Principal activities	
		2014	2013	2014	2013	
Shenyin Wanguo Trading (H.K.) Limited	HK\$375,000	100	100	-	-	Securities trading
Sparkle Well Limited	HK\$2	100	100	-	-	Property holding
Wealthy Limited	HK\$2	100	100	-	-	Property holding
Shenyin Wanguo (Holdings) Limited	HK\$2	100	100	-	-	Investment holding
First Million Holdings Ltd.*	US\$1	100	100	-	-	Investment holding
Crux Assets Limited*	US\$1	-	-	100	100	Investment holding
Shenyin Wanguo Nominees (H.K.) Limited	HK\$1,000	-	-	100	100	Provision of share custodian and nominee services
Shenyin Wanguo Online Broker (H.K.) Limited	HK\$10,000,000	60	60	-	_	Dormant
Shenyin Wanguo Singapore Private Limited*	SG\$2,500,000	-	_	100	100	Securities brokerage

^{*} Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

^{*} Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore

31 December 2014

16. INVESTMENTS

	Group	
	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000
Available-for-sale investments, at fair value		
Unlisted equity investment Unlisted club debentures	5,140 2,470	7,454 2,470
	7,610	9,924
Investments at fair value through profit or loss		
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong, at fair value Unlisted investment funds, at fair value Unlisted debt investments, at fair value	11,637 130,193 58,049	26,181 112,140 —
	199,879	138,321

The investments at fair value through profit or loss at 31 December 2014 of HK\$199,879,000 (2013: HK\$138,321,000) were classified as held for trading.

During the year, the gross loss in respect of the Group's available-for-sale investments recognised in other comprehensive income/loss amounted to HK\$2,314,000 (2013: gross income of HK\$369,000). No gains or losses in respect of the Group's available-for-sale investments recognised in other comprehensive loss was reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: net loss of HK\$1,703,000 was reclassified).

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there was a prolonged decline in the fair value of an unlisted equity investment classified as an available-for-sale investment. The directors considered that such a decline indicated that the unlisted equity investment was impaired and an impairment loss of HK\$2,623,000, which wholly represented a reclassification from other comprehensive income, had been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

31 December 2014

17. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liability during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Group	Deductible temporary differences HK\$'000
At 1 January 2013	878
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year (note 9)	(655)
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014	223
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year (note 9)	13
At 31 December 2014	236

Deferred tax liability

Group	Accelerated tax depreciation HK\$'000
At 1 January 2013	583
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year (note 9)	(77)
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014	506
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year (note 9)	(236)
At 31 December 2014	270

31 December 2014

17. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK\$183,909,000 (2013: HK\$211,850,000), subject to agreement by the Inland Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as it is uncertain whether sufficient future taxable profits will be available from these group companies against which the tax losses can be utilised.

At 31 December 2014, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax liability (2013: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group's subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to additional tax should such amounts be remitted due to the availability of double tax relief.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

	Group		
	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000	
Accounts receivable before provision for impairment Less: Provision for impairment	1,140,380	568,244 (21,770)	
Accounts receivable	1,140,380	546,474	

The movements in provision for impairment of accounts receivable are as follow:

	Group		
	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000	
At 1 January Amount written off as uncollectible	21,770 (21,770)	21,770	
At 31 December		21,770	

31 December 2014

18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Cont'd)

Save for the credit period allowed by the Group, the accounts receivable shall be due on the settlement dates of the respective securities and futures contract transactions. In view of the fact that the Group's accounts receivable relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Although the Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its accounts receivable balances, the Group is allowed to dispose of the securities deposited by the customers with the Group to settle any overdue amounts. Overdue accounts receivable from cash clients of HK\$76,936,000 (2013: HK\$87,118,000) bear interest at interest rates with reference to the Hong Kong dollar prime rate (2013: with reference to the Hong Kong dollar prime rate).

An aged analysis of accounts receivable before provision for impairment based on the trade date is as follows:

	Group		
	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000	
Within 1 month 1 to 2 months 2 to 3 months Over 3 months	1,111,263 12,002 3,116 13,999	513,918 5,475 2,599 46,252	
	1,140,380	568,244	

At 31 December 2013, the provision for impairment of accounts receivable included a provision for individually impaired accounts receivable of HK\$21,770,000 with a carrying amount before provision of HK\$21,770,000. The individually impaired accounts receivable relate to customers that were in default or delinquency in payments and the receivables are not expected to be recovered. There was no provision for impairment of accounts receivable at 31 December 2014.

31 December 2014

18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Cont'd)

The aged analysis of the accounts receivable that are not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

	Group		
	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000	
Not past due Less than 1 month past due 1 to 3 months past due Over 3 months past due	1,063,444 49,192 14,003 13,741	513,918 5,475 2,599 24,482	
	1,140,380	546,474	

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of default or are covered by securities deposited with the Group.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent customers that have a good track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

19. LOANS AND ADVANCES

	Group		
	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000	
Loans and advances to customers before provision for impairment:			
Secured Unsecured	1,717,634	1,529,418 2,212	
Chisecureu	1 717 624	<u> </u>	
	1,717,634	1,531,630	
Less: Provision for impairment		(13,173)	
	1,717,634	1,518,457	

31 December 2014

19. LOANS AND ADVANCES (Cont'd)

Customers are required to provide collateral to the Group for the loans and advances granted. As at 31 December 2014, the total market value of the securities pledged by customers to the Group as collateral in respect of the above loans and advances to customers was HK\$5,717,947,000 (2013: HK\$4,554,789,000), of which a total market value of HK\$368,756,000 (2013: HK\$795,567,000) of such collateral was pledged with banks to secure certain of the Group's bank loans (2013: overdrafts and bank loans) (note 25) as at 31 December 2014. The Group is allowed to dispose of the collateral in settlement of the customers' obligation to maintain the agreed level of margin and any other liability of the customers due to the Group. The Group is allowed to deposit the collateral with an authorised institution as collateral for financial accommodation provided to the Group according to the applicable legislations and regulations.

In view of the fact that the Group's loans and advances relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Loans and advances to margin clients of HK\$1,717,634,000 (2013: HK\$1,518,303,000) bear interest at interest rates with reference to the Hong Kong dollar prime rate (2013: with reference to the Hong Kong dollar prime rate).

The Group's loans and advances to customers were repayable on demand at the end of the reporting period.

At 31 December 2013, the provision for impairment of loans and advances included a provision for individually impaired loans and advances of HK\$13,173,000 with an aggregate carrying amount before provision of HK\$13,328,000. The individually impaired loans and advances relate to customers that were in default or delinquency in payments and only a portion of the loans and advances is expected to be recovered. The remaining balances of loans and advances that were not impaired relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of default or are secured by securities collateral pledged by the customers to the Group. There was no provision for impairment of loans and advances at 31 December 2014.

The movements in provision for impairment of loans and advances are as follows:

	Group	
	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000
At 1 January Amount written off as uncollectible	13,173 (13,173)	13,173
At 31 December	_	13,173

31 December 2014

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

	Group		Company	
	2014	2013	2014	2013
	HK\$'000	HK\$'000	HK\$'000	HK\$'000
Prepayments Deposits and other receivables	10,371	4,232	736	172
	14,071	12,948	1,459	1,127
	24,442	17,180	2,195	1,299

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

21. BANK BALANCES HELD ON BEHALF OF CLIENTS

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with licensed banks to hold clients' monies in accordance with the relevant legislation. The Group is allowed to retain some or all of the interest on the clients' monies. The Group is not allowed to use the clients' monies to settle its own obligations.

22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

	Group		Company	
	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000
Cash and bank balances Time deposits	272,413	191,356 86,370	7,940	7,244
	272,413	277,726	7,940	7,244

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the Group and the Company denominated in Renminbi ("RMB") amounted to HK\$33,191,000 (2013: HK\$45,472,000) and HK\$274,000 (2013: HK\$269,000), respectively. The onshore RMB balance of the Group amounted to HK\$686,000 (2013: HK\$1,028,000) and such onshore RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group and the Company are permitted to exchange onshore RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between one week and six months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

31 December 2014

23. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

An aged analysis of accounts payable, based on the trade date is as follows:

	Group		
	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000	
Within 1 month	3,653,108	2,943,689	

Except for the accounts payable to clients of HK\$2,307,723,000 (2013: HK\$2,256,792,000) and client monies held by the Group on behalf of an intermediate holding company of HK\$29,352,000 (2013: HK\$26,756,000) which bear interest at the bank deposit rate per annum, the remaining accounts payable are non-interest-bearing. Further details of client monies held by the Group on behalf of an intermediate holding company were contained in note 30(a)(viii) to the financial statements.

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

	Group		Company	
	2014	2013	2014	2013
	HK\$'000	HK\$'000	HK\$'000	HK\$'000
Other payables	31,672	24,257	3,340	1,072
Accruals	73,698	38,461	2,418	1,585
	105,370	62,718	5,758	2,657

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of within one year.

31 December 2014

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

within one year or on demand

Group

	Effective interest	2014		Effective interest	2013	
	rate	Maturity	HK\$'000	rate	Maturity	HK\$'000
Current Bank overdrafts – secured	Prime rate	On demand	218	HIBOR+1% to HIBOR+2%	On demand	69,345
Bank loans – secured	Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate ("HIBOR") +1.5% to HIBOR +1.6%	On demand	1,008,879	HIBOR+1% to HIBOR+2%	2014 or on demand	740,036
			1,009,097			809,381
					Group	
				20 HK\$'0		2013 HK\$'000
Analysed into: Bank loans and ove	erdrafts repaya	ble				

Notes:

- (a) At 31 December 2014, the Group's bank overdrafts of HK\$218,000 (HK\$69,345,000) was not secured by the pledge of any marketable securities pledged by customers to the Group as collateral. At 31 December 2013, the Group's bank overdrafts of HK\$69,345,000 were secured by the pledge of certain marketable securities pledged by customers to the Group as collateral amounting to HK\$158,310,000 (note 19).
 - In addition, the Company had guaranteed the bank overdrafts up to HK\$153,380,000 (2013: HK\$120,000,000) as at 31 December 2014.
- (b) The Group's bank loans of HK\$1,008,879,000 (2013: HK\$740,036,000) were secured by certain marketable securities pledged by customers to the Group and corporate guarantee to banks by the Company.
 - HK\$193,879,000 (2013: HK\$318,036,000) of the Group's bank loans utilised was secured by certain marketable securities pledged by customers to the Group as collateral amounting to HK\$368,756,000 (2013: HK\$637,257,000) as at 31 December 2014 (note 19).
 - The Company had guaranteed the bank loans up to HK\$1,830,000,000 (2013: HK\$1,037,000,000) of which HK\$1,008,879,000 (2013: HK\$523,036,000) bank loans was utilised as at 31 December 2014.
- (c) Certain of the Group's unutilised banking facilities are secured by guarantees given by the Company.
- (d) All borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
- (e) The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings approximate to their fair values.

809,381

1,009,097

31 December 2014

26. SHARE CAPITAL

	Company		
	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000	
Authorised: (note (i)) Nil (2013: 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK\$0.50 each) (note (ii))		1,000,000	
Issued and fully paid: 530,759,126 (2013: 530,759,126) ordinary shares	580,120	265,380	

Notes:

- (i) Under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), which became effective on 3 March 2014, the concept of authorised share capital no longer exists.
- (ii) In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the Company's shares no longer have a par or nominal value with effect from 3 March 2014. There is no impact on the number of shares in issue or the relative entitlement of any of the members of the Company as a result of this transition.

A summary of movements in the Company's share capital is as follows:

	Number of shares in issue	Share capital HK\$'000	Share premium account HK\$'000	Total HK\$'000
At 1 January 2013,				
31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014	530,759,126	265,380	314,740	580,120
Transition to no-par value regime on 3 March 2014 (Note (a))		314,740	(314,740)	-
At 31 December 2014	530,759,126	580,120		580,120

Note:

(a) In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in section 37 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), on 3 March 2014, any amount standing to the credit of the share premium account has become part of the Company's share capital.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Company completed the rights issue by issuing 265,379,563 new shares on 19 January 2015. Further details are contained in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

31 December 2014

27. RESERVES

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 7 of the financial statements.

The Group's general reserve represents prior year appropriations of profits which are distributable to the shareholders.

(b) Company

	Notes	General reserve HK\$'000	Retained profits HK\$'000	Total HK\$'000
At 1 January 2013		656	50,082	50,738
Total comprehensive loss				
for the year	10	_	(22,122)	(22,122)
Dividend paid	11	_	(7,962)	(7,962)
At 31 December 2013 and				
1 January 2014		656	19,998	20,654
Total comprehensive income			,	,
for the year	10	_	143,742	143,742
Dividend paid	11	_	(21,230)	(21,230)
'				
At 31 December 2014		656	142,510	143,166

The Company's general reserve represents prior year appropriations of profits which are distributable to the shareholders.

28. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, guarantee of the bank facilities granted to the subsidiaries by the Company were HK\$2,340,880,000 (2013: HK\$1,579,500,000) and out of such guarantees made, HK\$1,009,097,000 bank loan (2013: HK\$592,381,000) was utilised.

31 December 2014

29. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

	Group		
	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000	
Contracted, but not provided for the purchases of furniture, fixtures and equipment	989	2,076	

(b) Operating lease commitments as a lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years (2013: one to six years).

At 31 December 2014, the Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

	Group		
	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000	
Within one year In the second to fifth years, inclusive After the fifth year	24,277 38,840 	28,989 39,974 6,892	
	63,117	75,855	

At 31 December 2014, the Company did not have any significant commitments (2013: Nil).

31 December 2014

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) The Group had the following material transactions with related parties during the year:

		2014	2013
	Notes	HK\$'000	HK\$'000
Commission expenses paid to			
the ultimate holding company	(i)	2,026	3,071
Research fee paid to a subsidiary of	(7)	2,020	3,071
the ultimate holding company	(ii)	5,000	7,705
Consultancy fee for supporting		, in the second second	·
services in relation to brokerage			
business paid to the ultimate			
holding company	(iii)	2,500	_
Consultancy fee for supporting			
services in relation to brokerage			
business paid by the ultimate			
holding company	(iv)	1,300	_
Consultancy fee for supporting			
services in relation to corporate			
finance business paid to the	(14)	202	
ultimate holding company	(V)	203	

Notes:

- (i) The commission expenses paid to the ultimate holding company were calculated based on the prescribed percentage stated in the signed cooperation agreement for clients' transaction amount in Shenzhen and Shanghai B shares.
- (ii) The research fees paid to a subsidiary of the ultimate holding company were charged at a fixed amount in accordance with the signed agreement with reference to actual cost incurred.
- (iii) The consultancy fee for supporting service in relation to brokerage business paid to the ultimate holding company were charged at a fixed amount in accordance with the signed agreement with reference to actual cost incurred.
- (iv) The consultancy fee for supporting service in relation to brokerage business paid by the ultimate holding company were charged at a fixed amount in accordance with the signed agreement with reference to actual cost incurred.
- (v) The consultancy fees for supporting services in relation to corporate finance business paid to the ultimate holding company were charged at a fixed amount in accordance with the signed agreement with reference to actual cost incurred.

31 December 2014

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(a) The Group had the following material transactions with related parties during the year: (Cont'd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

- (vi) Included in the accounts receivable balance as at 31 December 2014 was a broker receivable due from the ultimate holding company of HK\$14,247,000 (2013: HK\$11,022,000) which arose from securities dealing transactions. This balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on the settlement date of the relevant transactions.
- (vii) Included in the accounts payable balance as at 31 December 2014 was a broker payable to the ultimate holding company of the Company of HK\$22,525,000 (2013: HK\$6,763,000) which arose from securities dealing transactions. This balance is unsecured, interest-free and payable on the settlement date of the relevant transactions.
- (viii) Included in the accounts payable balance as at 31 December 2014 was the amount of segregated client money held on behalf of an intermediate holding company of the Company of HK\$29,352,000 (2013: HK\$26,756,000) which arose from securities dealing transactions. This balance is unsecured, bears interest at the bank deposit rate and is payable on demand.
- (b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000
Short term employee benefits Post-employment benefits	37,594 1,425	26,195 1,626
	39,019	27,821

Further details of directors' emoluments are included in note 7 to the financial statements.

The transactions mentioned in (a) above also constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

31 December 2014

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2014 Group

Fin	and	rıal	assets

	Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss – held for trading HK\$'000	Loans and receivables HK\$'000	Available- for-sale financial assets HK\$'000	Total HK\$'000
Other assets	_	43,983	_	43,983
Available-for-sale investments	_		7,610	7,610
Investments at fair value through				
profit or loss	199,879	_	_	199,879
Accounts receivable	_	1,140,380	_	1,140,380
Loans and advances	_	1,717,634	_	1,717,634
Financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and				
other receivables	_	14,071	-	14,071
Bank balances held on behalf of				
clients	_	2,664,938	_	2,664,938
Cash and bank balances		272,413		272,413
	199,879	5,853,419	7,610	6,060,908

2014 Group

Financial liabilities

	Financial liabilities at amortised cost HK\$'000
Accounts payable	3,653,108
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals	57,859
Interest-bearing bank borrowings	1,009,097
	4,720,064

31 December 2014

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd)

2013	Group			
Financial assets				
	Financial			
	assets			
	at fair value		Available-	
	through profit		for-sale	
	or loss – held	Loans and	financial	
	for trading	receivables	assets	Total
	HK\$'000	HK\$'000	HK\$'000	HK\$'000
Other assets	_	30,757	_	30,757
Available-for-sale investments	_	- 1	9,924	9,924
Investments at fair value through				
profit or loss	138,321	-	_	138,321
Accounts receivable	_	546,474	-	546,474
Loans and advances	_	1,518,457	_	1,518,457
Financial assets included in				
prepayments, deposits and				
other receivables	-	12,948	-	12,948
Bank balances held on behalf of				
clients	_	2,510,756	_	2,510,756
Cash and bank balances		277,726		277,726
	138,321	4,897,118	9,924	5,045,363
2013				Group
Financial liabilities				
				Financial
				liabilities at
			ar	mortised cost
				HK\$'000
Accounts payable				2,943,689
Financial liabilities included in	other payables an	d accruals		27,866
Interest-bearing bank borrowing		a accidate		809,381
	9°		<u> </u>	
			_	3,780,936

31 December 2014

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd)

Floor 1 Louis	Company Loans and receivables		
Financial assets			
	2014 HK\$'000	2013 HK\$'000	
Due from subsidiaries Financial assets included in prepayments,	608,103	596,374	
deposits and other receivables	1,459	1,127	
Cash and bank balances	7,940	7,244	
	617,502	604,745	
Financial liabilities			
	Financial lia at amortise		
	2014	2013	
	HK\$'000	HK\$'000	
Due to subsidiaries Financial liabilities included in	13,853	114,462	
other payables and accruals	5,758	2,657	
	19,611	117,119	

31 December 2014

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The following tables present details of financial instruments subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements.

	Gross amounts of recognised financial assets HK\$'000	Gross amounts of recognised financial liabilities set off in the consolidated statement of financial position HK\$'000	Net amounts of financial assets presented in the consolidated statement of financial position HK\$'000	Related amo set off in the c statement of fina Financial instruments HK\$'000	onsolidated	Net amount HK\$'000
Assets Accounts receivable	1,601,488	(461,108)	1,140,380		_	1,140,380
	Gross amounts of	Gross amounts of recognised financial assets set off in the consolidated	Net amounts of financial liabilities presented in the consolidated	Related amo set off in the c statement of fina	onsolidated ncial position	
	recognised financial liabilities HK\$'000	statement of financial position HK\$'000	statement of financial position HK\$'000	Financial instruments HK\$'000	Cash collateral pledged HK\$'000	Net amount HK\$'000

31 December 2014

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Cont'd) **32.**

	Group 2013					
	Gross amounts of	Gross amounts of recognised financial liabilities set off in the consolidated	Net amounts of financial assets presented in the consolidated	Related amo set off in the co statement of fina	onsolidated	
	recognised financial assets HK\$'000	statement of financial position HK\$'000	statement of financial position HK\$'000	Financial instruments HK\$′000	Cash collateral received HK\$'000	Net amount HK\$'000
Assets						
Accounts receivable	895,553	(349,079)	546,474			546,474
			20	13		
	Gross amounts of	Gross amounts of recognised financial assets set off in the consolidated	Net amounts of financial liabilities presented in the consolidated	Related ar not set off in the statement of fina	consolidated	
	recognised financial liabilities HK\$'000	statement of financial position HK\$'000	statement of financial position HK\$'000	Financial instruments HK\$'000	Cash collateral pledged HK\$'000	Net amount HK\$'000
Liabilities						
Accounts payable	3,292,768	(349,079)	2,943,689	-	-	2,943,689

31 December 2014

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Financial instruments measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2014

	Fair value measu	iroment lising	
	Level 1	Level 2	
	(Quoted prices	(Significant	
	in active	observable	
	markets)	inputs)	Total
	HK\$'000	HK\$'000	HK\$'000
Available-for-sale investments:			
Unlisted equity investment	_	5,140	5,140
Unlisted club debentures	_	2,470	2,470
Investments at fair value through			
profit or loss:			
Listed equity investments			
in Hong Kong, at fair value	11,637	_	11,637
Unlisted investment funds,			
at fair value	-	130,193	130,193
Unlisted debt investments, at fair value		58,049	58,049
	11,637	195,852	207,489
As at 31 December 2013			
	Fair value measu	rement μsinσ	
	Level 1	Level 2	
	(Quoted prices	(Significant	
	in active	observable	
	markets)	inputs)	Total
	HK\$'000	HK\$'000	HK\$'000
Available-for-sale investments:			
Unlisted equity investment	_	7,454	7,454
Unlisted club debentures	_	2,470	2,470
Investments at fair value through profit or loss:			
Listed equity investments			
in Hong Kong, at fair value	26,181	-	26,181
Unlisted investment funds, at fair value		112,140	112,140
at ian value			
	26,181	122,064	148,245

31 December 2014

33. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

The Company did not have any financial instruments measured at fair value as at 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 34.

The Group's operating segments include brokerage business, corporate finance business, asset management business, financing and loans business, and investment and other business.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and price risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below. The Group's accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group's borrowings from banks during the year are for the provision of financing and loans to customers. The bank borrowings bear interest at interest rates with reference to the HIBOR whereas loans to customers bear interest at interest rates with reference to the Hong Kong dollar prime rate. As the Hong Kong dollar prime rate basically changes in line with the HIBOR, the Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates is minimal.

31 December 2014

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Cont'd)

Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in Hong Kong dollar interest rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings, interest-bearing accounts receivable, cash and bank balances and loans and advances) and the Group's equity.

	Group Increase/			
	Increase/ (decrease) in basis points	(decrease) in profit before tax HK\$'000	Increase/ (decrease) in equity* HK\$'000	
2014				
Hong Kong dollar	25	2,783	-	
Hong Kong dollar	(25)	(2,783)	_	
2013				
Hong Kong dollar	25	2,478	_	
Hong Kong dollar	(25)	(2,478)	_	

Excluding retained profits

Foreign currency risk

The Group's exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates arises from its dealings in overseas share markets. Such dealings are entered into on behalf of clients of the Group and accounted for a small portion of the Group's revenue. A material portion of such overseas transactions is denominated in United States dollars. The pegged exchange rate between United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars kept the Group's exchange risk exposure to a minimum and thus, no hedging was required. Exchange gains and/or losses are dealt with in the statement of profit or loss. The Group has endeavored to closely monitor its foreign currency positions and take necessary measures when the situations so justify. The Group's revenue denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars constituted only approximately 1% (2013: 1%) of the total revenue and the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk is not significant.

31 December 2014

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Cont'd)

Credit risk

The Group has put in place a well-established credit policy governing the granting of credit limit to customers. Customers are generally required to deposit their securities with the Group as collateral to their borrowings. The credit department is responsible for assisting the directors in formulating the credit policy of the Group, monitoring the credit risks of customers with reference to the realisable values of the collateral, managing the concentration of credit risk by customer and recommending measures to the directors for granting credit facilities which exceed the authority limit of the credit department. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group as it relates to a large number of diversified customers.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which comprise cash and bank balances, bank balances held on behalf of clients, available-for-sale investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss, other assets, and deposits and other receivables, arises from default of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable and loans and advances are disclosed in notes 18 and 19 to the financial statements, respectively.

Liquidity risk

There is a constant need of funding for the settlement of securities transactions and for the provision of financing and loans to the customers. The source of funding is either from the Group's own capital or borrowings from financial institutions, if necessary.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both of its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., accounts receivable) and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's borrowings from banks during the year are for the provision of financing and loans to customers for their purchases and continuous holding of securities. The maturity of bank borrowings of the Group usually ranges from overnight to six months, where the borrowings are either rolled over or repaid by the Group's own funding. In addition, for those clients who are unable to settle their settlement obligations or margin deficits, the Group may dispose of the securities collateral pledged by the customers to the Group. The Group always ensures that the securities collateral pledged by customers is able to be realised in the market within a reasonable period of time.

31 December 2014

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments (different from the financial liabilities as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position), is as follows:

2014		Group	
		Less than	
	On demand	1 year	Total
	HK\$'000	HK\$'000	HK\$'000
Accounts payable	2,861,982	791,126	3,653,108
Financial liabilities included in			
other payables and accruals	_	57,859	57,859
Interest-bearing bank borrowings	1,009,380	_	1,009,380
	3,871,362	848,985	4,720,347
2013		Group	
		Less than	
	On demand	1 year	Total
	HK\$'000	HK\$'000	HK\$'000
Accounts payable	2,602,701	340,988	2,943,689
Financial liabilities included in			
other payables and accruals	_	27,866	27,866
Interest-bearing bank borrowings	810,187		810,187
	3,412,888	368,854	3,781,742

Included in interest-bearing bank borrowings were certain of the Group's bank loans in the amount of HK\$1,008,879,000 (2013: HK\$740,036,000), of which the loan agreements contain repayment on demand clauses giving the banks the unconditional right to call in the loans at any time. Therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, the amounts are classified as "on demand".

Price risk

Price risk represents the possibilities of changes in fair values or future cash flows due to changes in market prices. The Group was exposed to price risk through its investments at fair value through profit or loss (note 16) and available-for-sale investments (note 16) as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

31 December 2014

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Cont'd) **34.**

Price risk (Cont'd)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 1% change in the fair values of the investments, with all other variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period. For the purpose of this analysis, for the available-for-sale equity investments, the impact is deemed to be on the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve and no account is given for factors such as impairment which might impact the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

	Increase/ (decrease) in fair value %	Group Increase/ (decrease) in profit before tax HK\$'000	Increase/ (decrease) in equity* HK\$'000
2014			
Investments listed in Hong Kong: – Held-for-trading	1 (1)	116 (116)	Ī
Unlisted investments: - Equity investments	1 (1)	_ 	51 (51)
– Investment funds	1 (1)	1,302 (1,302)	
– Debt investments	1 (1)	580 (580)	_ _
2013			
Investments listed in Hong Kong: – Held-for-trading	1 (1)	262 (262)	<u>-</u>
Unlisted investments: – Equity investments	1 (1)	- -	75 (75)
– Investment funds	1 (1)	1,121 (1,121)	_

Excluding retained profits

31 December 2014

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Cont'd)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders' value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. Certain subsidiaries of the Group are regulated by the Securities and Futures Commission (the "SFC") and are required to comply with certain minimum capital requirements according to the rules of the SFC. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is interest-bearing bank borrowings divided by total equity. The gearing ratio is reviewed and assessed regularly by the board of directors. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

Group	2014	2013
Interest-bearing bank borrowings (HK\$'000)	1,009,097	809,381
Total equity (HK\$'000)	1,316,496	1,246,113
Gearing ratio	76.7%	65.0%

35. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

- (a) On 28 November 2014, the Company announced that it proposed to raise approximately HK\$621.5 million (before expenses) by way of a rights issue on the basis of one rights share for every two existing shares of the Company at subscription price of HK\$2.342 per rights share (the "Rights Issue"). The Rights Issue subsequently became unconditional on 13 January 2015, and 265,379,563 shares were issued by the Company on 19 January 2015.
- (b) As at 31 December 2014, the Group held 666 unlisted shares (or 19.98% of equity) in Shenyin Wanguo Origin Investment Co., Ltd. ("SWOI"), which was classified as an available-for-sale investment. SWOI was winded-up on 15 January 2015, and its carrying amount of HK\$5,140,000 as at 31 December 2014 was fully recovered by way of distributions.

36. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 6 March 2015.



Shenyin Wanguo (H.K.) Limited 申 銀 萬 國 (香 港) 有 限 公 司

Level 19, 28 Hennessy Road, Hong Kong 香港軒尼詩道28號19樓

Tel 電話: (852) 2509 8333 Fax 傳真: (852) 3525 8368 Website 網址: www.sywg.com.hk